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Introduction 

Everett Community College submitted its Year Three Peer-Evaluation report to the NWCCU in Spring 
2013. In its Accreditation Letter of July 2013, the commission added a recommendation: 

The evaluation committee recommends that for each year of operation, the College undergo an 
external financial audit and that the results from such audits, including findings and management 
letter recommendations, be considered in a timely, appropriate and comprehensive manner by 
the Board of Trustees (Eligibility Requirement 19 and Standard 2.F.7). 

The NWCCU requested that Recommendation 4 be addressed in an Ad Hoc Report without a visit in Fall 
2014, to be submitted by September 2, 2014. 

At the January 2015 commission meeting, the NWCCU accepted the College’s September 2014 Ad Hoc 
report. The commission noted that the college had not achieved accreditation standards for 
Recommendation 4 and extended the prescribed two-year period to come into compliance until 
December 1, 2015. The NWCCU requested that the College again address Recommendation 4 in an Ad 
Hoc Report without visit to be submitted by October 15, 2015. 

At the January 2016 commission meeting the NWCCU deferred acceptance of the College’s October 
2015 Ad Hoc report. The commission determined that Recommendation 4 of the Spring 2013 Year Three 
Peer-Evaluation Report still does not meet the Commission’s criteria for accreditation. The Commission 
has again extended, for good cause, the prescribed two-year period to come into compliance until June 
2016. 

The Commission requested that the College submit by March 21, 2016, a Special Report that includes 
the financial statement and management letter from the external financial audit. 

This Special Report aims to fully describe and document the efforts that Everett Community College has 
taken to assure that the college undergoes an external financial audit annually, and that results of such 
audits are considered in a timely, appropriate and comprehensive manner by the College Board of 
Trustees. 
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Recommendation 

The evaluation committee recommends that for each year of operation, the College undergo an 
external financial audit and that the results from such audits, including findings and management 
letter recommendations, be considered in a timely, appropriate and comprehensive manner by 
the Board of Trustees (Eligibility Requirement 19 and Standard 2.F.7). 

The Washington State Auditor’s Office audited the College’s Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2012-
13. There were no findings that rose to the level of a management letter (Exhibit A). The College Board of 
Trustees considered the auditor’s report in their public meeting of March 17, 2015 (Exhibit B). 

The Auditor’s office audited the College’s Financial Statement for Fiscal Year 2013-14 (Exhibit C). There 
were two findings regarding depreciation and restricted funds noted in the management letter (Exhibit D). 
The College Board of Trustees considered the auditor’s report in their public meeting of September 15, 
2015 (Exhibit E). 

The Auditor’s office is in the process of auditing the College’s Financial Statement for Fiscal Year 2014-
15. We expect to receive this report in early Fall 2016. It will be discussed at the first public meeting of the 
Board of Trustees subsequent to receipt of the report. 
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Conclusion 

Everett Community College has made substantial progress to achieve the goals of Recommendation 4 of 
the Spring 2013 Peer-Evaluation. 

The College has contracted with the State of Washington Auditor’s office to audit the College’s financial 
statement on an annual basis. Audit reports have been completed for fiscal years 2012-13 and 2013-14, 
and the 2014-15 audit was initiated in February, 2016. The College anticipates receiving that report within 
the next six months. 

Consideration of the audit report and management letter is now a regularly scheduled agenda item for the 
College’s Board of Trustees. It is scheduled for the first public Board meeting after receipt of the auditor’s 
report. 
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Everett Community College 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of 
Everett Community College (the College) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 (FY 2013). The 
2013 report constitutes the college's inaugural audited financial statement. As a result, any 
comparisons included in this discussion were made with unaudited information for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012 (FY 2012). 

This overview provides readers with an objective and easily readable analysis of the College's 
financial performance for the year, based on currently known facts and conditions. This discussion 
has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the College's financial 
statements and accompanying note disclosures. 

Reporting Entity 
Everett Community College is one of thirty public community and technical college districts in the 
state ofWashington, providing comprehensive, open-door academic programs, workforce education, 
basic skills and community service educational programs to approximately 19,800 students annually. 
Established in 1941, Everett Community College awards associate degrees, prepares students for 
transfer to four-year schools, provides training and retraining for those preparing to enter the 
workforce, offers customized business training for professionals. teaches basic skills and literacy, and 
offers personal enrichment training 1• Everett Community College educates, equips and inspires each 
student to achieve personal and professional goals, contribute to our diverse communities and thrive 
in a global society. 

The College's main campus is located in Everett, Washington, a community of about 105,370 
residents2

• Classes are offered at other locations in Snohomish County. General education classes 
are offered in Monroe, Washington, at the Lake Tye building. The cosmetology program is located in 
Marysville, Washington. The Corporate and Continuing Education Center is located in Everett, 
across from the Boeing facility. The aviation program is offered at Paine Field. Other courses are 
provided through partnerships with Sno Isle Skills Center and Snohomish High school. 

The College is governed by a five member Board of Trustees appointed by the governor of the state 
with the consent of the state senate. By statute, the Board of Trustees has full control of the College, 
except as otherwise provided by law. 

1 EverettCommunity College Annual Report 2014 found at http://www.everettcc.edu/files/administration/visitors/profile/2014-
annual-report.pdf 

http://quickfacts.census.gov/gfd/stats/53/5322640.html 
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Condensed Statement of Net Position FY20l3 
As of June 30th 
Assets 
Current Assets 
Capital Assets, net 
Long-term investments 

 ................ -   
 

$ 20,616,585 
153,046,172 
10,038,420 

Total Assets $ 183,701,177 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

   
$ 8,187,108 

Other Liabilities, non-current 23,301,213 
Total Liabilities $ 31,488,321 

Net Position $ 152,212,856 

Using the Financial Statements 
The financial statements presented in this report encompass the College and its discretely presented 
component unit. The College's financial statements include the Statement of Net Position; the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. 
The Statement of Net Position provides information about the College at a moment in time, at year
end. The Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statement of Cash 
flows provide information about operations and activities over a period of time. Together, these 
statements, along with the accompanying notes, provide a comprehensive way to assess the 
college's financial health as a whole. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position 
are reported under the accrual basis of accounting where all of the current year's revenues and 
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or payments are made. Full 
accrual statements are intended to provide a view of the College's financial position similar to that 
presented by most private-sector companies. These financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), which establishes standards for external financial reporting for public 
colleges and universities. The full scope of the College's activity is considered to be a single 
business-type activity and accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic financial 
statements. 

Statementof Net Position 
The Statement of Net Position provides information about the College's financial position, and 
presents the College's assets, liabilities, and net assets at year-end and includes all assets and 
liabilities of the College. A condensed presentation of the Statement of Net Position is as follows: 
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Current assets consist primarily of cash, short-term investments, various accounts receivables and 
inventories. The college's cash and short-term investments are held in its US Bank accounts and the 
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). 

Capital assets include land, buildings, improvements, infrastructure. and equipment valued at $5,000 
or more, net of depreciation. Management of land and buildings is delegated by the state legislature 
to the colleges through the State Board of Community and Technical Colleges (SBCTC). 

Long-term investments include the College's investments in US agency bonds. 

Current liabilities include amounts payable to suppliers for goods and services, accrued payroll and 
related liabilities, the current portion of Certificates of Participation (COP) debt and unearned 
revenue. 

Non-current liabilities include amounts payable that may be due to employees upon separation, such 
as sick leave and vacation payouts. It also includes the future portion of Certificates of Participation 
(COP) debt. 

Net position represents the College's assets less its liabilities. These are shown in the chart below. 
The College is required by accounting standards to report its net position in four categories: 

Invested in Capital Assets (Net ofRelated Debt) - The College's total investment in 
property, plant, equipment. and infrastructure net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding 
debt obligations related to those capital assets. 

Restricted: 
Non Expendable - consists of funds in which a donor or external party has imposed 
the restriction that the corpus or principal is not available for expenditures but for 
investment purposes only. In recent years, donors interested in establishing such funds 
to benefit the College or its students have chosen to do so through the Foundation. 
However, some funds donated many years ago for this purpose remain in college 
accounts and are reported in this area. 

Expendable - resources the College is legally or contractually obligated to spend in 
accordance with restrictions placed by donor and/or external parties who have placed 
time or purpose restrictions on the use of the assets. These include capital project funds 
and the expendable portion of endowments. 

Unrestricted - Includes all other assets not subject to externally imposed restrictions, but 
which may be designated or obligated for specific purposes by the Board of Trustees or 
management. The college follows its adopted policy for use of these funds. 

Net Position FY2013 
As ofJune 30th 
Invested inCapital Assets, net ofrelated debt $ 131,139,514 
Restricted 

N onexpendable 78,488 
Expendable 9,467 

Unrestricted 20,985.,388 
Total Net Position $ 152,212,857 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position accounts for the College's total 
net position during FY 2013. The objective of the statement is to present the revenues received, both 
operating and non-operating, and the expenses paid by the College, along with any other revenue, 
expenses, gains and losses of the College. 

Generally, operating revenues are earned by the College in exchange for providing goods and 
services. Tuition, grants and contracts are included in this category. In contrast, non-operating 
revenues include monies the college receives from another government entity without directly giving 
equal value to that government entity in return. Accounting standards require that the College 
categorize state operating appropriations and Pell Grants as non-operating revenues. 

Operating expenses are expenses incurred in the normal operation of the College, including 
depreciation on property and equipment assets. When operating revenues, excluding state 
appropriations and Pell Grants, are measured against operating expenses, the College shows an 
operating loss. The operating loss is reflective of the external funding necessary to keep tuition lower 
than the cost of the services provided. 

A condensed statement of revenues, expense and changes in net position is presented below. A 
single year is presented as part of this inaugural set of financial statements. Future years will include 
comparative information. 

Condensed Statement of Revenue, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
As ofJune 30th FY12013 
Operating Revenues $ 54,336,603 
Operating Expenses 80,628,096 
Net OperatingLoss (26,291,493) 
Non-Operating Revenues 29,610,227 
Non-Operating Expenses 946,75( 
Gain (Loss) Before Other 2,371,983 
Capital Annrooriations 22,815,225 
Increase (Decrease) inNet Position $ 25,187,208 
Net Position, Beginning ofthe Year $ 127,025,648 
Net Position. End ofthe Year $ 152,212,856 

Revenues 
Continuing a trend that began midway through fiscal year 2009, the College's state operating 
appropriations decreased again in FY 2013. The State of Washington appropriates funds to the 
community college system as a whole. The State Board for Community and Technical Colleges 
(SBCTC) then allocates monies to each college. System-level appropriations hit their highest level at 
the beginning of FY 2009 and as of FY 2013 have been reduced by almost 24%. 

Over this same period, the Legislature and SBCTC instituted increases in tuition rates to partially 
offset the reduction in state appropriations. Since enrollments increased slightly in FY 2013, the 
College's revenues reflect the Increase in enrollments along with the increase in tuition revenues due 
to increased tuition rates. Pell grant revenues generally follow enrollment trends. Thus, as the 
College's enrollment continued to increase slightly during FY 2013, so did the College's Pell Grant 
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revenue. For FY 2013, the College attempted to keep other fees as stable as possible. resulting in 
only small changes in these revenues. In addition, the College offered some courses and programs 
on a fee-only 'self-support' basis, as allowed by law. Beginning in FY 2010 and continuing in FY 
2013, the college expanded its use of self-support classes to strategically absorb the impact of high 
enrollments during a period of high unemployment. As required by law, the college collected these 
funds as fees rather than as tuition. 

In FY 2013, grant and contract revenues contributed to the college's revenues. The College 
continued to serve students under the terms of contracted programs. The College contracted with 
local high schools to enroll Running Start students who earn both high school and college credit for 
their courses. In FY 2013, the college served over two hundred contracted international students who 
were not supported by state dollars. 

The College receives capital spending authority on a biennial basis and may carry unexpended 
amounts forward into one or two future biennia, depending on the original purpose of the funding. In 
accordance with accounting standards, the amount shown as capital appropriation revenue on the 
financial statement is the amount expended in the current year. Expenditures from capital project 
funds that do not meet accounting standards for capitalization are reported as operating expenses. 
Those expenditures that meet the capitalization standard are not shown as expense in the current 
period and are instead recognized as depreciation expense over the expected useful lifetime of the 
asset. 

Selected Elements of Revenue 
For lhe Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Note:For purposesof thischart, lu!Uon and fees reflect amounts collected 
and may include amounts students id with PellGrant proceeds30,000,000 

25,000,000 
20,000,000 

15,000,000 

10.000.000 
5,000,000 

State Tuition &Fees Pell Grants Grants & Capital 
Appropriations Collected Contracts Appropriations 

Expenses 
Faced with severe budget cuts over the past five years, the College has continuously sought 
opportunities to identify savings and efficiencies. 

Employee costs (salary/wages and benefits) make up the majority of the college's expenses. In FY 
2013, salary and benefit costs increased as a result of adding positions and negotiated increases for 
faculty. As positions were vacated and new positions were created, the costs associated with those 
positions increased due to job market competition. 

The college purposefully managed its utility expenses through sponsoring campus-wide sustainability 
initiatives. This reduced usage and associated expenses. The college's December closure also 
contributed to cost savings in this area. 
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Supplies and materials include instructional expenses, along with materials used by facilities and 
maintenance. This also includes the cost of goods sold, such as items from the college bookstore. 

Purchased services include expenses paid to university partners as a pass through from University 
Center. Additional expenses are paid to other entities for costs associated ·with the Healthcare 
Education to Career Opportunities grant and the Youth Re-Engagement program. 

Depreciation expenses represent the cost of capitalized assets being used over time. Some of those 
include our buildings, improvements and capitalized equipment. 

Selected Elements of Expense 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

35.000.000 

30.000,000 

25,000,000 

20,000,000 

15,000.000 

10,000.000 

5,000,000 
941,242 
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Operating Expenses by Function 
The chart below shows the percentage of each functional area of operating expenses for FY 2013. 
Instruction has traditionally encompassed the majority of college expenses over time, and FY 2013 is 
no exception. This aligns with the percentage of expenditures at other community and technical 
colleges in the SBCTC system. 

FY 2013 Expenses by Functional Type 
Auxillary 

Scholarships and 
Other Student 
FinancialAid 

16.4% 

Operations and 
Maintenance of 

Plant 
9.4% 

Academic Support 

Support 
8.6% 

Student Services 
6.1% 

Services 
3.6% 

Statement of Cash Flows 
The Statement of Cash Flows gives a general picture ofwhere the College obtains and spends its 
cash and cash equivalents. The statement gives detailed information about cash flows related to four 
different types of activities within the institution. 

The first section shows cash received and spent on the operations of the college. Since tuition and 
fees and other operating revenue alone do not normally cover the operating costs of a public higher 
education institution, this section can be expected to show more cash used than provided. 

The second section shows cash received and spent on non-capital financing activities of the College. 
Here the college reports cash from state appropriations and cash related to federally-funded Pell 
grants. This section also includes any activity that cannot be reported in one of the other sections. 

The third section shows cash received and spent on capital and related financing activities. This 
includes state capital appropriations for major projects, minor works and repairs. It also includes cash 
proceeds, loan origination costs, interest and principal payments related to Certificates of 
Participation. 

The fourth section shows cash received and spent on investing activities, including the purchase and 
sale of investment instruments and interest earnings. 
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Following these four sections, the statement provides the total increase in cash from beginning of the 
year to the end of the year. 

The last section of the statement includes a reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used solely by 
operating activities. The cash used by operating activities is shown also in section one by source and 
use. 

A condensed statement of cash flows is presented below. A single year is presented as part of this 
inaugural set of financial statements. Future years will include comparative information. 

Condensed Statement ofCash Flows 
As ofJune 30th FY2013 
Operating Activities $ (24,678,341) 
Non-Capital Financing Activities 29,524,045 
Capital Financing Activities 541,496 
Investing Activities 75,808 
Net Change in Cash $ 5,463,008 
Cash, Beginning ofYear 9,162,046 
Cash, End of Year $ 14,625,054 

Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt Activities 
The community and technical college system submits a single prioritized request to the Office of 
Financial Management and the Legislature for appropriated capital funds, which includes major 
projects, minor projects, repairs, emergency funds, alternative financing and major leases. The 
primary funding source for college capital projects is state general obligation bonds. In recent years, 
declining slate revenues significantly reduced the state's debt capacity and are expected to continue 
to impact the number of new projects that can be financed. 

At June 30, 2013, the College had invested $153,046,172 in capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation. 

June 30,2012 
Asset Type 

Land ---· 
June30, 2013 

$ 8,558,859 

(unaudited) 

$ 8,558,859 $ 

Change 
. 

Construction in Progress 30,598,654 15,724,365 14,874,289 
Buildings, net 110,920,576 I06,427,402 4,493,174 
Other Improvements and Infrastructure, net 316,267 339,904 (23,637) 
Equipment, net 2,565,795 1,362,102 1,20,693 
Library Resources, net 86,021 12,815 73,206 

Totul Capital Assets, Net $153,046,172 $ 132,425,447 $20,620,725 
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In FY 2013, the college began construction on the "Index replacement" project, Liberty Hall. It also 
began a remodel of the Corporate and Continuing Education Center (CCEC) facility on Seaway 
Boulevard in south Everett. These projects increased the college's investment in capital assets from 
the prior year. 

At June 30, 2013, the College had just over $21,000,000 in outstanding debt related to capital assets. 
The College entered into a Certificate of Participation (COP) for the remodel of CCEC during FY 
2013. The College has on-going capital leases for equipment in Whitehorse Hall along with fiber 
optic and other information technology infrastructure projects. 

Debt Type Junc30,2013 

Certificates ofParticipation $ 21,470,000 

Capital Leases $ 450,589 

Total $ 21,920,589 

Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future 
Following a trend that began in FY 2009, the College's state operating appropriations continued to 
decrease through FY 2013. More recently, when creating the 2013- 2015 biennial budget, the state 
Legislature re-Invested in community and technical colleges. The state Legislature continued this 
trend with a supplemental budget that included community colleges as a key partner in an investment 
in aerospace training. Everett Community College received a significant portion of the investment in 
aerospace training in the form of FTE funding. Should Everett Community College be successful in 
attaining its FTE and completion targets, this additional funding may be established as a part of the 
annual state allocation. 

Increasing the cost of tuition by 7% and 12% over the past years was a difficult decision for 
legislators, and they declined to approve tuition increases for FY 2014. It's unclear how much 
opportunity there may be for additional investments in community and technical colleges in the next 
few years, as state budget writers continue to grapple with court-mandated basic education 
obligations. 

Washington's Economic and Revenue Forecast Council 3 prepares independent forecasts quarterly 
throughout the year. In its most recent forecast (February 2014), the council observed that most of 
the state's economic risk factors continue to come from outside the state. A slowing Chinese 
economy, the potential for a slowdown in the U.S. housing recovery, and European economic and 
debt problems all remain major threats to the U.S. and Washington economies. 

Closer to home, Washington continues to add jobs, including showing growth in the manufacturing 
sector. Housing construction, home prices and car sales also increased and exports are at an all-

http://www.edu.wa.gov 
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time high. Both employment in Washington state and personal income are expected to continue to 
grow in 2014 and through 2019, the end of the period covered by the forecast. 4 

A hallmark of community colleges is the flexibility to quickly respond to the needs of the community, 
resulting in a pattern of high enrollment during economic downturns, punctuated by lower enrollment 
when the job market is strong. In Snohomish County, unemployment rates are on a consistent, 
downward trend5. From a peak of 11.3 percent in early 2010, the current rate as of July 2014 was 5.3 
percent. 

Based on US census data, Snohomish County residents were more likely to have attended some 
college I earned their associate's degree compared to the state and the nation. Even if the usual 
pattern is for lower enrollments during economic downturns, Everett Community College is currently 
maintaining its enrollment numbers and has not seen the same downturn as other colleges. This 
bodes well for the future of the college. 

Washington and US 
Unemployment Rates 

11.00% 

10.00% 

9.00% 

8.00% 
- Washington 

7.00% - u.s. 
6.00% 

5.00% 

4.00% 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

http://www.erfc.wa.gov 
https://fortress.wa.gov/esd/employmentdata/reports-publications 
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Washington State Auditor 
Troy Kelley 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANICAL STATEMENTS 

January 16, 2015 

Everett Community College 
Everett, Washington 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the 
Everett Community College, Snohomish County, Washington, as ofand for the year ended June 
30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements. We were not engaged to audit the 
financial statement of the aggregate discretely presented component units. These financial 
statements collectively comprise the College's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
Because of the matter described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion'' paragraph, however, 

14 
19



we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit 
opinion on the aggregate discretely presented component units. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the College's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on the Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 

The financial statements of Everett Community College Foundation (ECCF) component unit 
have not been audited, and we were not engaged to audit the ECCF financial statements as part 
ofour audit of the College's basic financial statements. ECCF's financial activities are included 
in the College's basic financial statements as a discretely presented component unit and represent 
100 percent of the assets, net position, and revenues, respectively, of the College's aggregate 
discretely presented component units. 

Disclaimer ofOpinion 

Because of the significance of the matter described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on 
the Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units" paragraph, we have not been able to 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the 
financial statements of the aggregate discretely presented component units of the Everett 
Community College, Washington. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on these financial 
statements. 

Unmodified Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Everett Community 
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College, Washington, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. 

Matters of Emphasis 

As discussed in Note I, the financial statements of Everett Community College, an agency of the 
state of Washington, are intended to present the financial position, the changes in financial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows ofonly that portion of the business-type activities of 
the state of Washington that is attributable to the transactions of the College and its aggregate 
discretely presented component units. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the 
financial position of the State of Washington as of June 30, 2013, the changes in its financial 
position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion was not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementa ry Information 

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis information that 
governmental accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our 
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing infonnation. 

Sincerely, 

TROY KELLEY 

STA TE AUDITOR 

OLYMPIA, WA 
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Everett Community College 
Statementof Net Position 

June30, 2013 

Currentassets 
Cash andcash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts Receivable 
InterestReceivable 
Inventories 

14,477,348 
147,706 

5,838,466 
27,679 

125,386 
20,616,585 

Non-current Assets 
Long-term Investments 
Capital assets net ofdepreciation 

Total non-current assets 
Total assets 

10,038,420 
153,045,172 
163,084,592 
183,701,177 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Liabilities 
DepositsPayable 
Unearned Revenue 
Leasesand Certificates ofParticipation Payable 

Total current liabilities 

805,917 
2,738,133 

7,281 
3,473,709 
1.162,068 
8,187,108 

NoncurrentLiabilities 
Compensated Absences 
Long-term liabillties 

Totalnon-current liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

2,542,692 
20,758,S21 
23,301.213 
31,488,321 

Net Posiltion 

Net InvestmentIn Capital Assets 
Restricted for: 

Nonexpendable 
Expendable 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 

131,139,514 

78,488 
9,467 

20,985,387 
152,212,856 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 183,701,177 
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Everett Community College 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Net Position 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Operating Revenues 
Student tuition and fees, net 23,015,133 
Auxiliary enterprise sales 5,426,139 
State and local grants and contracts 14,623,800 
Federal grants and contracts 10,583,109 
Other operating revenues 688,422 

Total operating revenue 54,336,603 

Operating Expenses 
Operating Expenses 9,387,353 
Salaries and wages 31,974,295 

Benefits 10,021,S76 
Scholarships and fellowships 16,723,397 
Supplies and materials 4,063,705 

Depreciation 3,379,115 
Purchased services 4,137,413 
Utilities 941,242 

Total operating expenses 80,628,096 

Operating Income (loss) (26,291,493) 

Non-Operating Revenues 
State appropriations 21,605,6&9 

Federal Pell grant revenue 7,916,051 
Investment Income, gains and losses 88,487 

Net non-operating revenues 29,610,227 

Non-Operating Expenses 
Interest on indebtedness 946.7S1 

Net non-operating expenses 946,7S1 

Income or (loss) before other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses 2,371.983 
Capital Revenues 

Capital appropriations 22,815,225 

Increase (Decrease) In net position 25,187,208 

Net Position 
Net position, beginning of year 127,025,648 
Net position end of year 152,212,856 

18 
(See accompanying notes to the financial statements) 23



EverettCommunity College 
Statementof Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Cashflow from operatingactivities 
Student tuition andfees 23.580,944 
Grantsand contracts 24,597,S2S 
Payments to vendors (18,608.445) 
Payments for utilities (941,242) 
Paymentstoemployees (32,175,291) 
Payments for benefits (10,103,389) 
Auxiliary enterprise sales 4,846.091 
Payments for scholarships and fellowships (16,723,397) 
Other receipts (payments) 848,864 

Netcash used by operating activities (24,678,340) 

Cashflow from noncapital financingactivities 
State appropriations 21,607,994 

Pell grants 7,916,051 
Amounts for other than capital purposes 0 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 29,524,045 

Cashflow from capitaland related financingactivities 
Proceeds ofcapitaldebt 4,000,000 
Capital appropriations 21,171,025 
Purchases ofcapital assets (25,965,233) 
Certificate of participations proceeds 3.416,611 
Principal paid on capital debt (1,134,156) 
Interestpaid (946,751) 

Net cash provided by capital andrelated financingactivities 541,496 

Cashflow from investing activities 
Purchaseof investments (6,012,679) 
Proceeds fromsales and maturities ofinvestments 6,000,000 
Income of lnvestments 88,481 

Net cash provided by investing activities 75.808 

Increase in cash and cashequivalents S,463.008 

Cashandcash equivalents atthebeginningoftheyear 9,162.046 

Cashand cashequivalentsatthe end ofthe year 14,625,054 

Reconciliation of Operating loss to Net Cash used by OperatingActivities 

(26,291,493) 

Adjustments to reconcilenet loss to net cash used by operatingactivities 

3,379,115 

Changes inassetsandliabilities 

Receivables, net (928,586) 
Inventories 590,875 
Otherassets 0 
Accounts payable (2,102,598) 
Accrued liabilities 263,753 
Unearned revenue 506,714 
Compensated absences (14,814) 
Deposits payable (41,266) 

net cashused byoperating activities (24,678,340) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 
These notes forman integral part ofthefinancial statements. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Financial Reporting Entity 
Everett Community College (the College) is a comprehensive community College offering open
door academic programs, workforce education, basic skills, and community services. The 
College confers associates degrees, certificates and high school diplomas. It is governed by a 
live-member Board ofTrustees appointed by the Governor and confirmedby the state Senate. 

The College is an agency of the State of Washington. The financial activity of the College is 
included in the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

The Everett Community College Foundation (the Foundation) is a separate but affiliated non
profit entity, incorporated under Washington law in 1984 and recognized as a tax exempt 
50l(c)(3) charity. The Foundation's charitable purpose is to provide scholarships to students, 
professional development opportunities to faculty and staff, equipment to aid in the teaching 
process, and financial assistance to the College to meet its greatest needs as may be detennined 
by the Foundation Board of Directors. Because the majority of the Foundation's income and 
resources are restricted by donors and may only be used for the benefit of the College or its 
students, the Foundation is considered a discrete component unit based on the criteria contained 
in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Nos. 61, 39 and 14. A 
discrete component unit is an entity which is legally separate from the College, but has the 
potential to provide significant financial benefits to the College or whose relationship with the 
College is such that excluding it would cause the College's financial slatements to be misleading 
or incomplete. 

The Foundation's financial statements are discretely presented in this report. Intra-entity 
transactions and balances between the College and the Foundation are not eliminated for 
financial statement presentation. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Foundation 
distributed approximately $596,585 to the College for restricted and unrestricted purposes. A 
copy ofthe Foundation's complete financial statements may be obtained from the Foundation's 
Administrative Offices at 2000 Tower Street, Everett, WA 9820I. 

Basis of Presentation 
The College follows all GASB pronouncements. The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management 
Discussion and Analysisfor Stale and local Governments as amended by GASB Statement No. 
35, Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis/or Public Colleges 
and Universities. For financial reporting purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose 
government engaged only in Business Type Activities (BTA). In accordance with BTA 
reporting, the College presents a Management's Discussion and Analysis; a Statement ofNet 
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Position; a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; a Statement ofCash 
Flows; and Notes to the Financial Statements. The fonnat provides a comprehensive, entity-
wide perspective of the College's assets, deferred inflows, liabilities, deferred outflows, net 
position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position and cash flows. 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

Beginning in fiscal year 2012-13, the College adopted the provisions ofGASB Statement No. 
60, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Service Concession Arrangements (GASB 60), 
which improves financial reponing by addressing issues related to service concession 
arrangements, which are a type ofpublic-private or public-public partnership. The College has 
no significant arrangements allowing external parties to operate College capital assets 

Beginning in fiscal year 2012-13, the College adopted the provisions ofGASB Statement No. 
62, Codification ofAccounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 
30. 1989 FASB and A/CPA Pronouncements (GASB 62) and amendments contained in GASS 
Statement No 66 Technical Corrections - 2012, which incorporates into GASB's authoritative 
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance included in the pronouncements of 
the FASB and American Institute ofCertified Public Accountants (AICPA). This statement also 
supersedes GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds 
and Other GovernmentalEntities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. 

Beginning in fiscal year 2012-13, the College adopted the provisions ofGASB Statement No. 
63, Financial Reporting ofDeferred Outflows ofResources. Deferred Inflows ofResources, and 
Net Position (GASB 63), which provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows ofresources. This statement amends the net asset reporting 
requirement in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management 's 
Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, and other pronouncements by 
incorporating deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources into the 
definitions of the required components of the residual mensure and by renaming that measure as 
net position, rather than net assets. The College did not identify any transactions requiring 
treatment as a deferred inllow or outflow. 

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities (GASB 65), which establishes accounting and financial reportingstandards that 
reclassify, as deferred outflows ofresources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that 
were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows ofresources or 
inflows ofresources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. GASB 
65 is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The 
impact of this pronouncement is uncertain at this time. 

In June 2012, the GASS issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions (GASB 68), which improves accounting and financial reponing by state and local 
governments for pensions. This statement also supersedes GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting 
for Pensions by State and Local GovernmentalEmployers, as well as GASB Statement No. 50, 
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Pension Disclosures. GASB 68 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2014. 
The impact of this pronouncement is uncertain at this time. 

In April 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 70, Accountingand Financial Reporting for 
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, which improves recognition, measurement and disclosure 
guidance for state and local governments that have extended or received financial guarantees that 
are non-exchange transactions. The impact of this pronouncement is uncertain at this time. 

Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements of the College have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred, 
regardless of the timing of the cash flows. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the College receives (or gives) value without directly 
giving (or receiving) equal value in exchange includes state and federal appropriations, and 
certain grants and donations. Revenues are recognized, net ofestimated uncollectible amounts, 
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met, ifprobable of 
collection. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States ofAmerica requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofassets and liabilities and disclosure ofcontingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts ofrevenue 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimntes. 

During the course ofoperations, numerous transactions occur between funds for goods provided 
and services rendered. For the financial statements, interfund receivables and payables have 
generally been eliminated. However, revenues and expenses from the College's auxiliary 
enterprises are treated as though the College were dealing with private vendors. For all other 
funds, transactions that are reimbursements ofexpenses are recorded as reductions ofexpense. 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank demand deposits, and deposits with the 
Washington State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). Cash in the investment portfolio 
is not included in cash and cash equivalents as it is held for investing purposes. Cash and cash 
equivalents that are held with the intent to fund College operations are classified as current assets 
along with operating funds invested in the LGIP. Endowment investments are classified as 
noncurrent assets. The College records all cash. cash equivalents, and investments at amortized 
cost, which approximates fair value. 
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The College combines unrestricted cash operating funds from all departments into an internal 
investment pool. the income from which is allocated on a proportional basis. The internal 
investment pool is comprised ofcash, cash equivalents and U.S. Agency securities. 

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary enterprise 
services provided to students, faculty and staff. This also includes amounts due from federal, 
state and local governments or private sources as allowed under the termsofgrants and contracts 
and amounts due from State Treasurer under the terms ofa certificate ofparticipation. Accounts 
receivable are shown net ofestimated uncollectible amounts. 

Inventories 
Inventories, consisting primarily ofsupplies used by aviation and cosmetology programs, are 
valued at cost using the first·in, first out method. 

Capital Assets 
In accordance with state law, capital assets constructed with state funds are owned by the State 
of Washington. Property titles are shown accordingly. However, responsibility for managing 
the assets rests with the College. As a result, the assets are included in the financial statements 
because excluding them would have been misleading to the reader. 

Land, buildings and equipment are recorded at cost, or ifacquired by gift, at fair market value at 
the date of the gift. As this is the first institution-level financial statement prepared by the 
College, GASB 34 guidance concerning preparing initial estimates for historical cost and 
accumulated depreciation related to infrastructure was followed. Capital additions, replacements 
and major renovations are capitalized. The value ofassets constructed includes all material 
direct and indirect construction costs. Any interest costs incurred are capitalized during the 
period ofconstruction. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the 
year in which the expense was incurred. In accordance with the state capitalization policy, only 
fixed assets with a unit cost of$5,000 or greater are capitalized. Depreciation is computed using 
the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 15 to 50 years for 
buildings and improvements, 3 to 50 years for improvements other than buildings, 7 years for 
library resources, 2 to 10 years for most equipment, and 11 to 40 years for heavy-duty 
equipment, air craft, locomotive and vessels. 

In accordance with GASB Statement 42, the College reviews assets for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances have indicated that the carrying amount of its assets might 
not be recoverable. Impaired assets are reported at the lower ofcost or fair value. At June 30, 
2013, no assets had been written down. 
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Unearned Revenues 
Unearned revenues occur when funds have been collected prior to the end of the fiscal year but 
related to the subsequent fiscal year. The College has recorded summer quarter tuition and fees 
and housing deposits as unearned revenues. 

Tax Exemption 
The College is a tax-exempt organization under the provisions of Section 115 (I) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income. 

Net Position 
The College's net position is classified as follows. 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets. This represents the College's total investment in capital 
assets, net ofoutstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. 

• Restricted for Nonexpendable. This consists ofendowment and similar type funds for 
which donors or other outside sources have stipulated as a condition of the gift instrument 
that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity and invested for the 
purpose ofproducing present and future income which may either be expended or added 
to the principle. 

• Restricted for Expendable. These include resources the College is legally or contractually 
obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by third parties. 

• Unrestricted. These represent resources derived from student tuition and fees, and sales 
and services ofeducational departments and auxiliary enterprises. 

Classification of Revenues 
The College has classified its revenues as either operating or non-operating revenues according 
to the following criteria: 

Operating Revenues. This includes activities that have the characteristics ofexchange 
transactions such as (1)student tuition and fees, net ofwaivers and scholarship discounts and 
allowances, (2) sales and services ofauxiliary enterprises and (3) most federal, state and local 
grants and contracts. 

Non-operating Revenues. This includes activities that have the characteristics ofnon-exchange 
transactions, such as gifts and contributions, state oppropriations and investment income. 

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 
Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of 
scholarship discounts and allowances in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Position. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge 
for goods and services provided by the College, and the amount that is paid by students and/or 
third parties making payments on the students' behalf. Certain governmental grants, such as Pell 
grants, and other Federal, State or non-governmental programs are recorded as either operating 
or non-operating revenues in the College's financial statements. To the extent that revenues 
from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College 
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has recorded a scholarship discount and allowance. Discounts and allowances for the year ending 
June 30, 2013 are $6,326,598. 

State Appropriations 
The state of Washington appropriates funds to the College on both an annual and biennial basis. 
These revenues are reported as non-operating revenues on the Statements ofRevenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Nee Position, and recognized as such when the related expenses are 
incurred. 

Operating Revenues/Expenses 
Operating revenues consist of tuition and fees, grants and contracts, sales and service of 
educational activities and auxiliary enterprise revenues. Operating expenses include salaries, 
wages, fringe benefits, utilities, supplies and materials, purchased services. and depreciation. All 
other revenue and expenses of the College are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses 
including state general appropriations, Federal Pell grant revenues, investment income and 
interest expense. 

2. Cash and Investments 
Cash and cash equivalents include bank demand deposits, peuy cash held at the College and unit 
shares in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). The LGIP is comparable to a Rule 2a-
7 money market fund recognized by the Securities and Exchange Commission ( 17 CFR 270.2a-
7). Rule 2a-7 funds are limited to high quality obligations with limited maximum and average 
maturities, the effect ofwhich is to minimize both the market and credit risk. The LOIP is an 
unrated investment pool. 

As ofJune 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the College's cash and equivalents was $14,625,054 
as represented in the table below. 

Table I: Cash and Cash Equivalents I June 30, 2013 

Petty Cash and Change Funds $7,845 
Bank Demand and Time Deposits  $14,422,878 

Local Government Investment Pool $194.331 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents I $14,625,054 

Investments consist of U.S. Agency bonds. All bonds held by the College are obligations of the 
United States or its agencies. 

IOor 
One Year 6 - 10 More 

Table 2: Investment Maturities Fair Value or Less I -5 Years Years Years 
U.S. Agency Obligations $ 10,038,420 $ 10,038,420 

Total Investments $10,038,420 $ - $10,038,420 I $ - $ . 
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Custodial Credit Risks-Deposits 
Custodial credit risk for bank demand deposits is the risk that in the event ofa bank failure, the 
College's deposits may not be returned to it, The majority of the College's demand deposits are 
with the US Bank. All cash and equivalents, except for change funds and petty cash held by the 
College, are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by collateral held 
by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). 

Interest Rate Risk-Investments 

The College manages its exposure to interest rate changes by limiting the duration of investments 
to mature at various points in the year. The portfolio average maturity is three years or less. 

Concentration ofCredit Risk-Investments 
State law limits College operating investments to the highest quality sectors of the domestic 
fixed income market and specifically excludes corporate stocks, corporate and foreign bonds, 
futures contracts, commodities, real estate, limited partnerships and negotiable certificates of 
deposit. College policy does not limit the amount the College may invest in any one issuer. 

Custodial Credit Risk-Investments 
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
to a transaction the College will not be able to recover the value ofinvestment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession ofan outside party. At June 30, 2013, none of the College's 
investments are exposed to custodial credit risk because the investments are held by US Bank 
Safekeeping ofWashington in the College's name. 

3. AccountsReceivable 
Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary enterprise 
services provided to students, faculty and staff. It also includes amounts due from federal, state 
and local governments or private sources in connection with reimbursements ofallowable 
expenditures mode according to sponsored agreements. At June 30, 2013, accounts receivable 
were as follows: 

Table 3: Accounts Receivable Amount 
Student Tuition and Fees $ 1,520,862 
Due from the FederalGovernment $ 523,189 
Due from Other State Agencies 
Auxiliary Enterprises 
Other 

$ 
$ 
$ 

3,389,059 
850,518 

734 
Subtotal $ 6,284,362 

Less Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts $ {445,896) 

Accounts Receivable, net $ 5,838,466 
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4. Inventories 
Inventories, stated at cost using first in, first out method, consisted of the following as ofJune 
30, 2013: 

Table 4: Inventories Amount 
Consumable Inventories 
Merchandise I nventories 
Raw Materials Inventories 

 $ 
$ 
$ 

125,386  .  . 
Inventories $ 125,386 

5. Capital Assets 
A summary of the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013 is presented as 
follows. The current year depreciation expense was $3,379,115. 
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Table 5: Capital Assets 
Beginning 

Balance 
Additions/
Transfers 

Retirements Ending Balance

Nondepreciable capitalassets 

Land $ 8,558,8S9 $ . $ . $ 8,558,859 
Construction in progress 15,724,365 23,378,685 8,504,396 30,598,654 

Total nondepreciable capital assets 24,283,224 23,378.685 8.504.396 39,157,513 

Depreciable capital assets 

Buildings 135,652,499 6,781,862 0 142,434,361I 
Other improvements and infrastructure 813,213 0 0 813,213 
Equipment 6.011.185 1,782.812 747.982 7,046.015 
Library resources  ,, -- 1,914.109 73,206 62,602 1,924,713 

Subtotal depreciable capital assets 144,391,006 8,637,880 810,584 152,218,302 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Buildings 29,225,097 2,288,688 0 31,513,785 
Other improvements and infrastructure 473,309 23,637 0 496,946 

Equipment 4,649,083 1,066,790 1.235,653 4,480,220 
Library resources  

Total accumulated depreciation 

1,901.294 
36,248.183 

0 
3,379,115 

62.602 
1,298,255 

1,838.692 
38,329,643 

Capital as sets, net ofaccumulated 
$ 

depreciation 
132,425,447 $ 28,637,450 $ 8,016,725 $ 153,046,172



6. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
At June 30, 2013, accrued liabilities are lhe following: 

Table 6: Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities Amount 
Accrued Liabilities $ 1,643,804 
Amounts Owed to Employees $ 1,094,329 
Accounts Payable $ 805,917 
Amounts Held for Others $ 7,281 

Total $ 3,551,331 

7. Unearned Revenue 
Unearned revenue is comprised ofreceipts which have not yet met revenue recognition criteria, 
as follows: 

Table 7: Unearned Revenue Amount 
Summer Quarter Tuition & Fees $ 3,033,042 
Housing and Other Deposits 440,667 
Total Unearned Revenue $ 3,473,709 

8. Risk Management 
The College, in accordance with state policy, pays unemployment claims on a pay-as-you-go 
basis. Payments made for claims from July 1,2012 through June 30, 2013, were $117,879. 

The College purchases commercial property insurance through the master property program 
administered by the Department ofEnterprise Services for buildings that were acquired with 
COP proceeds. The policy has a deductible of$250,000 per occurrence and the policy limit is 
$100,000,000 per occurrence. The College has had no claims in excess of the coverage amount 
within the past three years. The College assumes its potential property losses for most other 
buildings and contents. 

The College participates in a State of Washington risk management self-insurance program, 
which covers its exposure to tort, general damage and vehicle claims. Premiums paid to the State 
are based on actuarially determinedprojections and include allowances for payments ofboth 
outstanding and current liabilities. Coverage is provided up to $10,000,000 for each claim with 
no deductible. The College has had no claims in excess of the coverage amount within the past 
three years. 
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9. Compensated Absences 
At termination ofemployment, employees may receive cash payments for all accumulated 
vacation and compensatory time. Employees who retire get 25% of the value of their 
accumulated sick leave either credited to a Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association 
(VEBA) account. which can be used for future medical expenses and insurance purposes, or a 
cash payout based on an annual vote ofunion retirees. The amounts of unpaid vacation and 
compensatory time accumulated by College employees are accrued when incurred. The sick 
leave liability is recorded as an actuarial estimate ofone-fourth the total balance on the payroll 
records. The accrued vacation leave totaled $1,305,777 at June 30, and accrued sick leave totaled 
$1,236,915 at June 30, 2013. 

Accrued annual and sick leave are categorized as non-current liabilities. 

10. Leases Payable 
The College finances some capital asset purchases through the Washington State Treasurer's 
leasing program. These are classified as capital leases. The College also has leases for student 
residences, classroom space ond other assets with various vendors. These leases are classified as 
operating leases. As ofJune 30, 2013, the minimum lease payments under capital leases and 
operating leases consist of the following. 

Table 8: Leases Payable 
Fiscalyear CapitalLeases Operating Lenses 

2014 224,703 408.978 

2015 86,155 409,203 

2016 89,455 343.442 
2017 87,155 321,680 

2018 0 100,878 

2019-2023 0 155,128 

2024-2028 - 0 155.128 

2029-2033 0 155.128 
2034-2038 0 155,128 

2039-2043 0 85,320 

Total minumum lease payments 487,468 2,290,013 

Less Amount representing interest 36.879 
Net present value $ 450,589 

11. Notes Payable 
In August, 2012, the College obtained financing to remodel the Corporate and Continuing 
Education Building through a certificate of participation (COP), issued by the Washington State 
Treasurer (OST) in the amount of$3,545,000. The interest rate charged is approximately 
3.103%. 
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In August, 2009, the College obtained financing to build the Health Education & Fitness Center 
through certificates ofparticipation (COP). issued by the Washington Office ofState Treasurer 
(OST) in the amount of$20,440,000. Students assessed themselves, on a quarterly basis, a 
mandatory fee to service the debt starting in 2011. The interest rate charged is approximately 
4.463%. 

Student fees related to the Health Education & Fitness Center COP are accounted for in a 
dedicated fund, which is used to pay a portion of the principal and interest, not coming out of the 
general operating budget. The College's debt service requirements for these note agreements for 
the next five years and thereafter are as follows: 

12. Annual Debt Service Requirements 
Future debt service requirements at June 30, 2013 are as follows. 

Annual Debt Service Requirements ..
Certificates of Participation Capital Leases 

Fiscal year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 
2,014 $ 955,000 $ 918,913 $ 1,873,913 $ 207,068 $ 17,635 $ 224,703 
2,015 

 2,016 
 
I 2,017 

985,000 
1,015,000 
1,050,000 

890,263 
859,513 
826,033 

1,875,263 
1,874,513 
1,876,033 

76,251 9,904 86,155 
82,943 6,512 89,455 
84,327 2,828 87,155 

2,018 1,090,000 783,383 1,873,383 
2019-2023 6,185,000 3,200,100 9,385,100 •  • 
2024-2028 -2029-2033 
2034-2038 
2039-2043 

7,680,000 
2,510,000 

 

1,710,661 
175,450 

9,390,661 
2,685,450 

• I •     . . 1  !-. I . 
. 

Total $ 21,470,000 $ 9,364,314 $ 30,834,314 
 

$ 450,589 $ 36,879 $ 487,468 

13. Schedule of Long Term Debt 

Balance Balance 
outstanding outstanding 

6/30/12 Additions Reductions 6/30/13 Currentportion 

Certificatesof Participation $ 18,860,000 $ 3,545.000 $ 935.000 $ 21,470,000 $ 955,000 
Capital leases 649,745 . 199,156 450,589 207,068 
Compensated Absences 2,349.640 1,947,232 1,754,180 2,542,692 

Total $ 21,859,385 $ 5,492,232 $ 2,888,336 $ 24,463,281 s 1,162,068 
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14. Pension Plans 
The College offers three contributory pension plans. The Washington State Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) and Teachers Retirement System (TRS) plans are cost sharing 
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the State of Washington 
Department of Retirement Services. The State Board Retirement Plan (SBRP) is a multiple 
employer defined contribution plan for the faculty and exempt administrative and professional 
staffof the state's public community and technical Colleges. The plan includes supplemental 
payment, when required. The plan is administered by the State Board for Community and 
Technical Colleges (SBCTC). 

For FY2012-13, the payroll for the College's employees was $9,347,922 for PERS, $336,044 for 
TRS, and $18,466,362 for SBRP. Total covered payroll was $28,027,873. 

PERSandTRS 
Plan Descriptions. PERS Plan I provides retirement and disability benefits and minimum benefit 
increases to eligible nonacademic plan members hired prior to October 1,1977. PERS Plans 2 
and 3 provide retirement and disability benefits and a cost-of-living adjustment to eligible 
nonacademic plan members hired on or after October I, 1977. Retirement benefits are vested 
after five years ofeligible service. PERS Plan 3 has a defined contribution component that 
members may elect to self-direct as established by the Employee Retirement Benefits Board. 
PERS 3 defined benefit plan benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of 
eligible service. 

TRS Plan 3 provides retirement benefits to certain eligible faculty hired on or after October 1, 
1977. The plan includes both a defined benefit portion and a defined contribution portion. The 
defined benefit portion is funded by employer contributions only. Benefits are vested after an 
employee completes five or ten years ofeligible service, depending on the employee's age and 
service credit, and include an annual cost-of-living adjustment. The defined contribution 
component is fully funded by employee contributions and investment perfonnance. 

The College also has one faculty member with pre-existing eligibility who continues to 
participate in TRS 1 or 2. 

The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions resides with the legislature. PERS and 
TRS issue publicly available financial reports that include financial statements and required 
supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the Department of 
Retirement Systems, PO Box 48380, Olympia, Washington 98504-8380 or online at 
http://www.drs.wa.gov/administration . 

Funding Policy. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts PERS and TRS Plan I 
employer contribution rates, Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 
employer contribution rates. Employee contribution rates for PERS and TRS Plans I are 
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established by statute By statute PERS 3 employees may select among six contribution rate 
options, ranging from 5 to 15 percent. 

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage ofcurrent year covered payroll are 
shown in the table below. The College and the employees made 100% ofrequired contributions. 

Contribution Rates and Required Contributions. The College's contribution rates and required 
contributions for the above retirement plans for the years ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 201 1 
are as follows: 

Contribution Rates ofJune 30 
FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 

PERS 
Plan 1 
Plan2 

Employee 

6.00% 
3.90% 

College 

5.31 % 
5.31 % 

Employee 

6.00% 
4.64% 

College 

7.08% 
7.08% 

Employee 

6.00% 
4.64% 

College 

7.21 % 
7.21 % 

 
I 

Plan3 5 • 15% 5.31 % 5-15% 7.08% 5- 15% 7.21 % I 

TRS 

Plan 1 6.00% 6.14% 6.00% 8.04% 6.00% 8.05% 
Plan3 5-15% 6.14% 5-15% 8.04% 5-15% 8.05%  

RequiredContributions 

FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 

Employee College EmployeeCollege Employee College 

PERS 

Plan l $ 14,259 $ 12,620 s 14,652 $ 11,555 $ 11,323 s 13,606 

Plan 2 $ 293,368 $ 399,437 $ 341,974 $ 530,973 $ 357,658 $ 555,760 
Plan 3 $ 58,463 $ 45,783 $ 73,922 $ 83,999 $ 88,725 $ 101,607 

TRS 

Plan 1 $ 11,757 $ 12,031 $ 11.813 $ 15,513 $ 11.909 $ 15,975 

Plan2 $ 2,490 $ 4,550 $ 3,311 $ 5,723 $ 3,475 $ 5,964 

Plan3 $ $ . $ . $ $ 3,895 $ 4,620 

Stute Board Retirement Plan 
Plan Description. Faculty and exempt administrative and professional staff are eligible to 
participate in SBRP. The Teacher's Insurance end Annuity Association (TIAA) and the College 
Retirement Equities Fund (CREF) are the companion organizations through which individual 

32 

37



 

retirement annuities are purchased. Employees have at all times a 100% vested interest in their 
accumulations. 

TIAA-CREF benefits are payable upon termination at the member's option unless the participant 
is re-employed in another institution which participates in TIAA-CREF. 

The Plan has a supplemental payment component that guarantees a minimum retirement benefit 
goal based upon a one-time calculation at each employee's retirement date. The SBCTC makes 
direct payments on behalfof the College to qua Ii fying retirees when the retirement benefit 
provided by TIAA-CREF does not meet the benefit goal. Employees are eligible for a non
reduced supplemental payment after the age of65 with ten years of full-time service. 

The minimum retirement benefit goal is 2% of the average annual salary for each year of full-
time service up to a maximum of25 years. However, if the participant does not elect to make the 
10% TIAA-CREF contribution after age 49, the benefit goal is 1.5% for each year of full-time 
service for those years the lower contribution rate is selected. 

The State Board for Community and Technical Colleges is authorized to amend benefit 
provisions under RCW 28B. I 0.400. In 2011, the plan was amended to eliminate the 
supplemental benefit provisions for all employees hired after June 30,201 1. 

Contributions. Contribution rates for the SBRP (TIAA-CREF), which are based upon age, are 
5%, 7.5% or 10% ofsalary and are matched by the College. Employee and employer 
contributions for the year ended June 30, 2013 were each $1,616,534. 

The SBRP supplemental pension benefits are unfunded. Forthe year ended June 30, 2013, 
supplemental benefits were paid by the SBCTC on behalf of the College in the amount of 
$9,497. In 2012, legislation (RCW 28B.10.423) was passed requiring Colleges to pay into a 
Supplemental Benefit Fund managed by the State Investment Board, for the purpose of funding 
future benefit obligations. During FY 2013, the College paid into this fund at a rate of 0.25%of 
covered salaries, totaling $46,822. As ofJune 30, 2013, the Community and Technical College 
system accounted for $2,052,816 of the fund balance. 

Washington State Deferred Compensation Program 
The College, through the state of Washington, offers its employees a deferred compensation plan 
created under Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all State employees, 
permits individuals to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The state of Washington 
administers the plan on behalfof the College's employees. The deferred compensation is not 
available to employees until termination, retirement or unforeseeable financial emergency. The 
College does not have access to the funds. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits 
Health care and life insurance programs for employees of the state of Washington are 
administered by the Washington State Health Care Authority (HCA). The HCA calculates the 
premium amounts each year that are sufficient to fund the statewide health and life insurance 
programs on a pay-as-you-go basis. These costs are passed through to individual state agencies 
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based upon active employee headcount; the agencies pay the premiums for active employees to 
the HCA. The agencies may also charge employees for certain higher cost options elected by the 
employee. 

State ofWashington retirees may elect coverage through state health and life insurance plans, for 
which they pay less than the full cost of the benefits, based on their age and other demographic 
factors. The health care premiums for active employees, which are paid by the agency during the 
employees' working careers, subsidize the "underpayments" ofretirees. An additional factor in 
the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) obligation is a payment that is required by the 
State Legislature to reduce the premiums for retirees covered by Medicare (an "explicit" 
subsidy). This explicit subsidy is also passed through to state agencies via active employee rates 
charged to the agency. There is no formal state or College plan that underlies the subsidy of 
retiree health and life insurance. 

The state of Washington funds OPEB obligations at a state-wide level on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
Disclosure information, as required under GASB Statement No. 45, does not exist at department 
levels, and as a result, the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) is not available for the College. 
The state of Washington's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) includes the state's 
measurement and recognition ofOPEB expense/expenditures, liabilities, note disclosures, and 
required supplementary information specified by GASB Statement No. 45. The State Actuary's 
report is available at: http://osa.leg.wa.gov/Actuarial Services/OPEB/OPEB.htm 

The College paid $5,059,446 for healthcare expenses in 2013, which included its pay-as-you-go 
portion of the OPEB liability. 

15. Operating Expenses by Program 
In the Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, operating expenses are 
displayed by natural classifications, such as salaries, benefits, and supplies. The table below 
summarizes operating expenses by program or function such as instruction, research, and 
academic support. The following table lists operating expenses by program for the year ending 
June 30, 2013. 

Expenses by Functional Classification 
Instruction $ 35,974,291 
Academic Support Services 2,899,532 
Student Services 4,931,929 
Institutional Support 6,915,312 
Operations and Maintenance of Plans 7,545,065 
Scholarships and Other Student Financial Aid 13,226,894 
Auxiliary enterprises 5,778,367 
Depreciation 3,356,706 

Total operating expenses $ 80,628,096 

..... 
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16. Commitments and Contingencies 
There is a class action filed against the State of Washington on behalfofcertainemployees 
alleging improper denial of healthcare benefits. Although the College has not been named as a 
defendant in the lawsuit, some of the class members are current or former employees of the 
College. Potentially, the state could assess the College with a material share ofany amount paid 
in the event ofa settlement or judgment. Due to the status of the lawsuit, the impact upon the 
College cannot be assessed with reasonable certainty at present. 

The College also has an outstanding legal matter originally filed with a labor arbitrator and with 
the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC). The arbitrator ruled in favor of the 
College. However, PERC ruled in favor of the complainant. The College appealed the ruling. At 
the end of fiscal year 2013, the College had notice ofa pending claim ofapproximately 
$300,000. This figure included back pay for the impacted employees along with possible 
attorney's fees that may or may not be assessed. Additionally, the College is engaged in various 
legal actions in the ordinary course ofbusiness. Management does not believe the ultimate 
outcome ofthese actions will have a material adverse effect on the financial statement. 

The College has commitments of$3,508,634 for various capital improvement projects that 
include construction and replacement ofan existing building. 

17. Subsequent Events 
The above referenced legal matter with PERC has been resolved effective June, 2014. The total 
cost to the College was $337,701. 

In fall 2013, the College received notice oferror in calculating the license costs associate with a 
Novell software product. To correct the error, the College paid Novell $290,850. 
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Appendix B 

Board of Trustees 
P 425.388.9572 - f 425.388.9531 

The Board of Trustees of Everett Community College met on March 17, 2015 at 5 :00 p.m. in the 
Jackson Wilderness Room at Everett Community College. 

Presidents update 

• Alison Stevens introduced the Washington All-Academic Team nominee who will be recognized 
by Governor Inslee at a special ceremony in Olympia in March 2015: 

Taylor Nisonger Bond 
Human Services, 4. 0 GPA 

Biography : I have sought out opportunities to share my experiences with others because I believe 
awareness and brazen honesty go.farther to address the needs of those who are suffering than 
any other indirect method. My education is the reason I can share my story ·with others in a 
sober, coherent and intellectually sensible manner. I plan on continuing my outreach and 
sharing my story with anyone who ·will listen. Keeping with my belief that higher education will 
increase my chances of truly helping others, I plan to continue in school to prepare me for more 
opportunities to serve. 

 Education Goal: To fin ish her AA and transfer to the Human Services program through Western 
WA University. "My long-term goal is to get my MSW, or possibly a Masters in Counseling. I 
haven't yet decided which path I would take f or my graduate work. I plan on working for several 
years at the Bachelors level before I choose a specialty. " 

Career Goal: "To gain good work experience prior to graduating with my Bachelors. My long
term career goal is to serve the homeless and/or drug addicted conununity. Homelessness often
coincides with addiction and mental illness, and so I p lan to start here. " 

• A new activity for the President's Briefing will be to share information from faculty and staff 
with Ignite presentations. The first presentation today will be from Rob Abernathy, Kristine 
Washburn, and Peg Balachowski. 

• David Beyer reported 
o it is the end of the winter quarter with finals week and next week is spring break; and 
o he attended the NAACP Gala Dinner where Trustee Betty Cobbs was awarded the 

Community Service Award. 

Roll call: 
Chair Gigi Burke called the meeting to order. Present for the meeting were trustees Bob Bolerjack, 
Gigi Burke, James Shipman, Betty Cobbs, and Mike Deller was present via phone. Also present 
were President David Beyer, Recording Secretary Melissa Geraghty, Assistant Attorney General 
Nancy Garland, Faculty Representative Jeanie Goodhope, Student Representative Azrael Howell, 
Classified Representative Judy Thomas, Faculty Council Representative Greg Hammond and 40 
faculty, staff, students and administrators. 

41



Board of Trustees 
March 17, 2015 
Board Meeting 
Page2 

Report from the Board 

Trustee James Shipman reported that at the Audit Committee meeting this morning they reviewed the 
college's finances which look cautiously good, with enrollment slightly down but tracking as 
budgeted. 

Trustee Betty Cobbs reported she attended the reception at AMTEC last month with EASC and there 
was wonderful tour and presentation. 

Chair Gigi Burke reported that she attended the reception at AMTEC with EASC last month and 
heard a lot ofgood comments afterwards. 

Trustee Mike Deller reported receiving positive feedback about AMTEC and our partnerships. 

Consent Agenda 
MOTION 01-03-2015 Bob Bolerjack moved for approval of the minutes from January 20, 

2015. Betty Cobbs seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously, with Mike Deller voting via phone. 

Review and take Action on Faculty Tenure Recommendations 
On February 17, 2015, the Board spent considerable time reviewing tenure committee 
recommendations. Alison Stevens, Executive Vice President of Instruction and Student Services, 
presented to the Board: 

Per Section 8.70 of the faculty contract: 
A. The appointing authority shall provide for the award of faculty tenure following a 
probationary period not to exceed nine (9) consecutive quarters, excluding Summer Quarters and 
approved leaves of absence. 

1. Provided, the appointing authority may award or withhold tenure at any time, after it 
has given reasonable consideration to the joint recommendations of the appropriate review 
committee and the College President. 
2. The probationer shall be deemed to have been awarded tenure ifno official notice is 
sent to the probationer by the last day of the probationer's eighth probationary quarter. 
3. The probationary period may extend in accordance with RCW 28B.50.852. 

Probationers who are being recommended for tenure by appointment review committee: 
Andrea Cahan, Mathematics 
Joseph Graber, Engineering 
Gail McLean, Nursing 
Matt Parsons, Engineering 
Michael Story, Mathematics 
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MOTION 02-03-2015 Gigi Burke moved that the Board of Trustees, after having given 
reasonable consideration to the recommendations of the Appointment 
Review Committee and college president, grant tenure to Andrea 
Cahan. Bob Bolerjack seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously, with Mike Deller voting via phone. 

MOTION 03-03-2015 James Shipman moved that the Board of Trustees, after having given 
reasonable consideration to the recommendations of the Appointment 
Review Committee and college president, grant tenure to Joseph 
Graber. Betty Cobbs seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously, with Mike Deller voting via phone. 

MOTION 04-03-2015 Mike Deller moved that the Board of Trustees, after having given 
reasonable consideration to the recommendations of the Appointment 
Review Committee and college president, grant tenure to Gail McLean. 
James Shipman seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously, with Mike Deller voting via phone. 

MOTION 05-03-2015 Bob Bolerjack moved that the Board ofTrustees, after having given 
reasonable consideration to the recommendations of the Appointment 
Review Committee and college president, grant tenure to Matt Parsons. 
Betty Cobbs seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously, 
with Mike Deller voting via phone. 

MOTION 06-03-2015 Betty Cobbs moved that the Board of Trustees, after having given 
reasonable consideration to the recommendations of the Appointment 
Review Committee and college president, grant tenure to Michael 
Story. Bob Bolerjack seconded the.motion and the motion passed 
unanimously, with Mike Deller voting via phone. 

Review and take action on faculty probationary renewal recommendations 
Alison Stevens presented the first-year and second-year probationers who are being recommended for 
renewal of their probationary contracts. 

First-Year Probationers 
Michelle Barnes, Early Childhood Education 
Miles Erickson, Information Technology 
Patty Lager, Biology 
Alys Lim, Mathematics 
Vanessa DePuente, Nursing 
Nancy Ellen Jones, Photography 
Ricky Hellings, Aviation 
Dale Lerback, Aviation 
Mike Patching, Aviation 
Maxi Boeckl, Chemistry 
David Primacio, Engineering Technology 
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Jessica Taylor-Edwards, English (winter 2015 start) 
Kevin Soderlund, Machining 

Second-Year Probationers 
Jennifer Beebe, Developmental English 
Mark Eppley, Accounting 
Chris Killingstad, Mathematics 
Marti Ollman, Nursing 
Jed Serven, Physics 
Heather Uhl, Library 
Andrew Wahl, Digital Communications 

MOTION 07-03-2015 James Shipman moved that the Board of Trustees, after having given 
reasonable consideration to the recommendations of the Appointment 
Review Committee and college president, renew the probationary 
contracts for first and second year probationers. Bob Bolerjack 
seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously, with Mike 
Deller voting via phone. 

As amended, Jessica Taylor-Edwards was removed from the original 
Motion 07-03-2015 and will be brought back to the Board of Trustees 
for her first year probationary renewal recommendation at the end of 
Spring Quarter 2015. 

MOTION 08-03-2015 Betty Cobbs moved that the Board of Trustees, after having given 
reasonable consideration to the recommendation of the Appointment 
Review Committee and college president, renew the probationary 
contract for Susan Wilson, Nursing/OB. Bob Bolerjack seconded the 
motion and the motion passed unanimously, with James Shipman 
abstaining from voting, and with Mike Deller voting via phone. 

Review and Take Action on Professional Leaves 
Alison Stevens, Executive VP of Instruction and Student Services presented to the Board that the 
Professional Leave Committee recommends Board approval of the following applications for 
professional leaves for academic year 2015-16. The following recommendations are in priority order, 
per AFT contract: 

Name 
Brett Kuwada 

Proposal 
Becoming a Licensed Clinical Psychologist 

Leave Period 
Spring 

Bob Bertoldi Developing Expertise in Instructional Design and 
Technology 

Fall 

Steve Powell Development of Open Source Resources for Chem& 
121 

Winter 
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Name Proposal Leave Period 
Gina Myers Response to Intervention (RTI) Development and 

Implementation in Basic Skills-and Developmental 
Education 

Winter 

Eric Davishahl Development of an Open Educational Resource to 
 support instruction and implementation of scientific 
computing across the EvCC engineering curriculum 

Fall 

Kevin Craft Publishing in the 21st Century: Written Arts Program 
Curriculum Renewal and Professional Advancement 

Fall 

John Bruemmer Language Acquisition and Global Education 
Enhancement Leave 

Winter 

Don Smith In pursuit of a Doctoral Degree Winter 

Brett Kuwada Becoming a Licensed Clinical Psychologist Winter 

Bob Bertoldi Developing Expertise in Instructional Design and 
Technology 

Winter 

Roger Berger Develop a diversity class on working-class literature and 
to assemble a letter of inquiry and other materials to 
submit a proposal for a book I am writing. 

Fall 

Jackie Hedgpeth Travel and study the Marine Biology, Terrestrial Flora 
and Fauna, Oceanography, Geology, Environmental and 
Ecological systems of the St. Lawrence Seaway, North, 
Central and South Atlantic Coasts, all the Caribbean 
Islands, the North Coast of South America and the 
Orinoco River, the Panama Canal, Central American 
Pacific Coasts and South America's upper Pacific Coast. 

Fall 

Recommend funding for four (4) one quarter professional leave requests. 

MOTION 09-03-2015 Betty Cobbs moved that the Board of Trustees approve the Professional 
Leave Request as presented for four (4) total quarters. Bob Bolerjack 
seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously, with Mike 
Deller voting via phone. 

Review and Approve Auditor's Final Report 
Jennifer Howard presented to the Board that this report was reviewed by the Board and the Board 
Audit Committee February 17, 2015. At that time, we did not have the final auditor's report. The 
report has now been issued and this is the final financial report for fiscal year 2013 (year end June 30, 
2013) including the management discussion and analysis, auditor's report and the financial statement. 
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MOTION 10-03-2015 James Shipman moved that the Board of Trustees approve the 
Auditor's Final Report. Bob Bolerjack seconded the motion and the 
motion passed unanimously, with Mike Deller voting via phone. 

Review and Approve 2014-2015 Faculty Professional Leave Reports 
Alison Stevens presented to the Board the 2014-15 faculty professional leave reports. The 
Professional Leave Committee approves written reports of the attached 2014-15 sabbaticals per AFT 
contract section 12.511. 

12.511 Final Reports 
A. Recipients of professional leave shall submit a written report and/or evaluation concerning 
their leave activities to the College President and the Professional Leave Committee by the end of 
the first quarter after returning.  · 
B. The College President shall receive the final reports of the leave recipients and the 
recommendations for approval or rejection of those reports from the Professional Leave 
Committee. 
C. The College President shall forward the final reports and the Professional Leave Committee 
recommendations to the Board, certifying the completion or non-completion of each professional 
leave contract. 

Submitted Reports: 
Name Proposal Leave Period 
Christine Wilson Students Enhancing Education for Diversity's Sake Winter 2014 

("SEEDS") for Global Change: an All-Campus, Service 
Learning project 

Anne Brackett Innovation in Online Chemistry Education Fall 2014 

Karen Schilde Developing a Tool Kit ofBest Practices for Learning Winter 2014 
Centers in ABE/ESL 

MOTION 11-03-2015 Bob Bolerjack moved that the Board of Trustees approve the 2014-15 
faculty professional leave reports. Mike Deller seconded the motion 
and the motion passed unanimously, with Mike Deller voting via 
phone. 

Reports to the Board 

Student Representative 
Azrael Howell, ASB President, brought two special guests with him who are members of the 
Executive Council- Madison Kunzman (Vice President of Budget & Finance) and Angelina Feltsan 
(Vice President of Administration). He reported to the Board that he attended the NAACP Gala and 
congratulated Trustee Betty Cobbs on her award, as well as Jerod Grant for his Presidential Award. 
He also attended the United Way Gala last week. He reported that the student budget for next year is 
balanced and the Senate will be approving proposals. 
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Classified representative 
Judy Thomas reported to the Board that staff is busy getting grades posted and getting financial aid 
out, and in the process of lobbying to fund their contract. 

Faculty Representative 
Jeanie Goodhope reported to the Board that tenure and the tenure process as well as professional 
leave are all important to faculty. Professional leave is a time for renewal and growth, especially for 
professional development within a faculty member's specific discipline. She expressed 
disappointment that only four quarters were given of the twelve requested. David Beyer commented 
that Jeanie organized most of the meetings for the tenure process. Jeanie asked the Board how they 
liked the on-line portfolios. Feedback from the Board was positive, with comments of being able to 
spend more quality review time, it's easier to follow and to set the pace for going through materials. 

Faculty Council Representative 
Greg Hammond reported to the Board that the Faculty Forum met two weeks ago and discussed two 
topics of concern. The first topic was notification to students if instructors are out for illness. Canvas 
email seems to be the quickest way to notify students but is not always used by the instructors. They 
are working on solutions for a quicker notification system and will be going to the Deans to discuss. 
The second topic was the number ofwebsites a student is required to interact with over the course of 
their schoolwork. They want to make it easier and are discussing ways to do this. He reported that 
Administration has been very helpful in listening to the concerns he presents and taking action. He 
especially appreciated the response from a request he made at the VP Staff meeting asking for data on 
full-time faculty and administration growth and that the data was provided quickly. He mentioned 
that over the last five years, full-time faculty has taken on more moonlighting classes - 12.5% at 
EvCC whereas it is 8% state-wide - and that needs further discussion. 

Student Success Report - Achieving the Dream Conference 
Heather Bennett reported that EvCC sponsored a team of 22 employees and one student to attend the 
Achieving the Dream annual conference (DREAM) in Baltimore from February 17-20, 2015. This 
conference gathers representatives from the more than 200 colleges in the A TD network to share the 
processes and practices adopted in their work to improve student success at community colleges. 

Two EvCC teams presented at the conference: faculty members Gina Myers, Karen Schilde, and 
Donna Olsen led "Teaching Students with Mental Health and Substance Abuse Issues: A Replicable 
Faculty Workshop," and Heather Bennett and Sharon Ralston led "Engaging the Community in 
Student Success." Both workshops had 40-50 people in attendance and generated positive responses. 

The EvCC DREAM team reported their take-aways from the conference with ways to build upon our 
current ATD work, things that can be done without significant college resources, and BIG ideas for 
the future. Some of the common elements of these responses included addressing cultural 
competency throughout the student experience from outreach to graduation, better integrating the 
College 10 1 college success course as mandatory for all students, and eliminating the "revolving 
door" of Adult Basic Education to help those students transition into college-level work and 
successful college completion. The team agreed across the board that greater campus communication 
and engagement is needed to take this work to the next level, especially clear communication of our 
larger goals and tracking of our progress towards achieving those goals. 
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Executive Session · 
At 6:38 p.m. Chair Gigi Burke adjourned into executive session to discuss real estate and personnel 
issues. She stated that no action would be taken. 

Adjourn 
Meeting adjourned at 6:38 p.m. 

Bob Bolerjack ice Chair David N. Beyer, Secret 
Board ofTrustees Board of Trustees 
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Everett Community College 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of 
Everett Community College (the College) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (FY 2014) with 
comparative 2013 (FY 2013) financial infonnation. 
This overview provides readers with an objective and easily readable analysis of the College's 
financial performance for the year, based on currently known facts and conditions. This discussion 
has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the College's financial 
statements and accompanying note disclosures. 

Reporting Entity 
Everett Community College is one of thirty public community and technical college districts in the 
state of Washington, providing comprehensive open-door academic programs, workforce education, 
basic skills and community service educational programs- to approximately 19,800 students annually. 
Established in 1941, Everett Community College awards associate degrees, prepares students for 
transfer to four-year schools, provides training and retraining for those preparing to enter the 
workforce, offers customized business training for professionals, teaches basic skills and literacy, and 
offers personal enrichment training 1. Everett Community College educates, equips and inspires each 
student to achieve personal and professional goals, contribute to ourdiverse communities and thrive 
in a global society. 

The College's main campus is located in Everett, Washington, a community of about 105,370 
residen!s2

. Classes are offered at other locations in Snohomish County. General education classes 
are offered In Monroe, Washington, at the Lake Tye building. The cosmetology program is located in 
Marysville, Washington. The Corporate and Continuing Education Center is located in Everett, 
across from the Boeing facility. The aviation program is offered at Paine Field. Other courses are 
provided through partnerships with Sno Isle Skills Center and Snohomish High school. 

The College is governed by a five member Board of Truslees appointed by the governor ot the state 
with the consent of the state senate. By statute, the Board of Trustees has full control of the College, 
except as otherwise provided by law. 

1 Everett Community College Annual Report 2014 found at http://www.1tv"rm1ce.mJu/liles/mtmi1Ji~t(iUfonMrlJN;l/nrQfll4/2014-
annualreport 

J n11ndtuui,J.fo.ii!:i&J:.Jll!U,~.l!I!vtq j,J/Ft?l¢W,<;;i/fi3~l(,40,llu1,I 
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Using the ..Financial ·Statements 
The financial statements presented in this report encompass lhe College and its discretely presented 
component unit. The College's financial statements include the Statement of Net Position; the 
Statement. of Revenues Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and· the Statement of Cash Flows 
The Statement of Net Position provides informationabout the College at a moment in time, at year 
end. The Statement of Revenue,. Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statement ofCash 
flows provide informationabout operations· and ·activities over a period of time, Together, these 
statements, along with the accompanying notes, provide a comprehensiveway to assess the 
college's financial health as a whole. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes inNet position 
are reported under the accrual basis of accounting whereall of the current year's revenues and 
expenses are t'aken into account regardless of when cash is received orpayments are made. Full 
accrual statementsare· intended to provide a view of the College's financial position similar to that 
presented by most private-sector companies. These financial statements are preparedin accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
StandardsBoard' (GASB), which establishes standards forexternal financial reporting for public 
colleges and universities The full scope of the College's activity is considered to be a single 
business-type activity and accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic financial 
statements. 

Statement of Net Position 
The Statement of NetPosition provides information about the College's financial position, and 
presents the College'sassets, liabilities,and net assets at year-end and includes all assets and 
liabilities of the College. A condensed comparison of tne Statement ·of Net Position is asfollows: 

Condensed S tatementofNet Position FY2014 FY 2 0 l3 
As of June 30th 

Assets 
Current Assets $ 24,626,719 $ 20,616,585 
Capital Assets net 151,894,650 153,046,172 
long term invest ments 12,021,443 10,038,420 

Total Assets $ 188,542,812 $ 183,70,1 ,117 

Liabi lities 

Current Liabilities $ 8,120,198 $ 8,187,108 
OtherLiabilities non-current 22,309,186 23,301,213 

Total Liabilities $ 31,029,384 $ 3 1,488,321 

Net Position $ 157,51I 3,428 $ 152,212,856 

Net Positionas previously reported was restated for net amounts receivable from the State Treasurer 
that were previously nol reported. SeeNote 18 in accompanying financial statements for more information. 

Current assetsconsist primarily ofcash, investments various accounts receivables and inventories The 
significantincrease of current assetsinFY 2014 is partially attributedto a $2.2million dollarreceivable from 
the State treasurer This receivable is due to appropriationsrelated to FY 20 14that werenot received until after 

the end ofFY 2014 
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Net capital assets decreased by $ 1.15million from FY 2013 to FY2014. Everett Community College had $4.5 
millionin current depreciationexpense, combined with disposal of certain assets This decrease was offset in 
part by ongoing acquisitionsof capitalizable equipment. 

Current liabilities includeamounts payable to suppliers for goods and services, accrued payroll and related 
liabilities the current portion of Certificateof Participation (COP) debt, deposits held for othersand unearned 
revenue. Current I iubilities can fluctuate from year to year depending onthe timelinessof vendor invoices and 
resulting vendor payments, especially i11 the area ofcapital assets and improvements. 

Long term investments include the college's investments in bonds TheEvCC boilrd ofTrustees voted to 
increase the amount of funds designated for investment purposes because of its positive investment return in 
this area The investmentsare held by US Bank Safekeeping, part of the US Bank Corporation. 

Current liabilities increased at the end of the year because of EvCC's investment in the Applied Machining and 
Technology Center. The increase in accounts payable beganin May 2014 related to the construction remodel of 
an existing college facility located on north Broadway. This facility became AMTEC, which.opened in fall 
2014. 

Non-current liabilities primarily consist of the value of vacation and sick leave earned but not yet used by 
employees, andthe long-term portion of Certificates of Participation debt The COP debt did not change 
significantly in FY 2014; However, the leave liability increased as the number of employees increased 

Net position represents the value of the College's assets after liabilities are deducted The College is required 
by accounting standards tn report its net position in four categories 

Invested in Capital Assets (NetofRelatedDebt) - The College's total investment in property, plant, 
equipment, and infrastructure net ofaccumulated depreciation and outstanding debt obligations related 
to those capital assets Changes in these balances are discussed above 

Restricted: 
Non Expendable - consists of funds in which a donor or external party has imposed the 
restriction that the corpus or principal is not available for expenditures but for investment 
purposes on ly. 

Expendable - resources the College is legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance 
with restrictions placed by donor and/or external parties who have placed time or purpose 
restrictions on the use of the asset The primary expendable funds for the College arethe 
expendableportionofendowments. 

Unrestricted - Includes all other. assets not subject to externally imposed restrictions, but which mny be 
designated or obligated for specific purposes by the Board ofTrustees or management. 
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Condensed NetPosition FY2014 FY2013 
As of June 30th 

In ves ted in Capital Assets net of relateddebt $ 131,383,126 $ 131,139,514 
Restricted 

Expendable 9,467 9,467 
Nonexpendable 78,557 78,488 

Unres tricted 26,042,278 20,985,387 

TotalNet Position $ 157,513,428 $ 152,212,856 ,· 

Net Position as previously reportedwas restated for net amounts receivable from the State Treasurer 
thatwere previously notreported See Note18 in accompanying financial statements (or more information 

Statement of Revenues Expenses andChanges in NetPosition 
The Statement ot Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position accounts for the College's total 
net position during FY 2014. The objective of the statement is to present the revenues received, both 
operating and non-operating, and the expenses·paid by the College along with any other 'revenue, 
expenses, gains and loss.es of the College. 

Generally, operating revenues are earned by the College in exchange for providing goods and 
services. Tuition, grantsand contracts are included in this category in contrast, non-operating 
revenues include monies the college receives from another governmententity without directly giving 
equal value.to that government entityin return. Accounting standards require that the College 
categorize state operating appropriations and Pell Grants as non-operating revenues. 

Operating expenses are· expenses. incurred ln the normal operation of the College including 
depreciation on property and equipment assets. When operating revenues, excluding state 
appropriations and Pell Grants, are mea.sured against operating expenses, the College shows an 
operating loss. The operating loss is reflective of the external funding necessary to,keep tuition lower 
than the cost of the services provided. 

A condensed statement of revenues, expense and changes in net position is presented below. 

CondensedStatement of Revenue, Expenses and 
Changesin Net Position 
As of June30th FY2014 FY2013 
Operating Revenues $ 45,897,347 $ 54,336,603 
Operating Expenses 72,654,732 80,628,096 

Net Operating Loss (26,757,385) (26,291,493) 
Non-Operating Revenues 31,649,032 29,610,227 

Non-Operating Expenses 3,539,104 946,751 
Gain (Loss)l Before Other 1,352,543 2,371,983 
Capital Appropriations 1,705,626 22,815,225 

Increase(Decrease) in Net Position 3,058,169 25,187,208 
Net Position, Beginning of the Year, as restated 154,455,259 127,025,648 
Net Position End of the Year $ 157,513,428 $ 152,212,856 

*Net Position as previously reportedwasrestated for net amounts receivable from the State Treasurer 
that were previously not reported. SeeNote 18 in accompanying financial statements more information 

Revenues 
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The State of Washington appropriates funds to the community college systemas a whole. The state Board for 
Community and TechnicalColleges (SBCTC) then allocates monies to-each college, System-level appropriations hit their 
highest level at the beginning of FY 2009 and at the closeof FY  2013were reduced by almost 24%. In FY 2014, the 
legislature reinstated asmall portion of the previous cuts. 

'In both FY 2013 and FY 2014,. tuition rates remained unchanged. However, the revenue from tuitionincreased by $2.8 
million in FY 2014. This is generally due to achange in: revenues from international students. Effective FY 2014, 
internationalstudent tuition that was previously counted as contract revenue is now counted as part of tuition and fees 
per a rules clarification by the State Board ofCommunity· and TechnicalColleges. Additionally, successful recruiting 
efforts led to greatertha·n anticipated internationalstudent enrollments. 

Student fees were not increased at the College for FY 2014·. In addition, the College continuesto serve some students 
and offers some programs on a fee-only basis, as allowed by law. Changes in enrollment patterns have caused the 
college to move away from self-support and offer most classes as state support. Remaining self-support programs 
include Fire Science; Medical Coding/Transcription; and Corporate and Continuing Education programs. 

In FY 2014, grant and contract revenues had a netdecrease of $8.4 million TheOffice ofFinancial Management's (OFM) 
guided change to not recognize revenue or expense for federal direct Joansreduced federal grant revenue and expense 
by $5.7 million. In addition, the HECO grant was in its final extension year, and this reduced revenue by $1.5 million over 
FY 2013. A third decrease in con·tract revenue came as a result of thechange in international student revenue 
described above. 

The College receives capital spendingauthorityon a biennial basis and may carry unexpended amounts forward into one 
or two future biennia, depending on the original purposeof thefunding. In accordancewith accounting standards the 
amount shown as capital appropriation revenue on the financialstatement is the amount expended in thecurrent year. 
Expendituresfrom capital project funds that do not meet accounting standards for capitalization are reported as 
operating expenses. Those expenditures that meet the capitalization standard are not shown as expense in the current 
period and are instead recognizedas depreciation expense over the expecteduseful lifetime of the asset. 

Selected Elements of Revenue 
For the Years EndedJune30, 2014 and 2013 

Note: For purposesof this chart tuition and and mayinclude amounts paid withfeesreflect amounts collected students 
PellGrant proceeds. 

FY2014 FY2013 

5,000,000 
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Expenses 
Faced with severe reductions in allocation over the past five years, the College has continuouslysought opportunities to 
identify savings and efficiencies. 

Employee costs (salary/wages and benefits) make up the majority of thecollege's expenses In FY 2014, salary and 
benefitcosts increased as a result of adding positions and negotiated increases for faculty. As positions were vacated 
and new positions were created, the costs associated with those positions continueto increase due to job market 
competition. 

The college purposefully managed its utility expenses through sponsoring campus-wide sustainability initiatives. This 
reduced usage and associated expenses The college's December closure also contributedto cost savings in this area. 

Supplies and materials include instructional expenses, along with materials used by facilities and maintenance. 

Purchased services include expenses paid to university partners as apass through from University Center. Additional 
expenses are paid to other entities for costs associated with the Youth Re-Engagement program. 

Depreciation expenses represent the cost ofcapitalized assets being used over time including our buildings, 
improvements and capitalized ,equipment. 

Selected Elements of Expense 
For theYearsEndedJune 30, 2014, andunaudited 2013 

 

40,000,000----------------

35,000,000 

25,000,000 

15,000,000 

10.000,000 

Comparison of Selected Operating Expenses by Function 
The chart below shows the amount, in dollars, for selected functional areas ofoperatingexpensesfor FY 2014 and FY 
2013. This illustrates the College's commitment to instruction and the support ofstudent successover and above the 
administrative functionsof the College. 
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FY 2014 Expenses·by Functional Type 

Statement ofCash Flows 
The Statement ofCash Flows gives a general picture of where. the College obtains and spends its cash and cash 
equivalents. The statement gives detailed information about cash flows related to four different types ofactivities 
within the institution. 

The first section shows cash received and spent on the operations of the college. Since tuition and fees and other 
operating revenue alone do not normally cover the operating costs of a public higher education Institution, this section 
can be expected to show more cash used than provided. For FY 2014, the cash provided from tuition/fees and 
grants/contracts was down by $5.5 million. Cash used was down by $15.3 million generally due to fewer payments to 
vendors (fewer capital projects) and payments for scholarships (changes described earlier to direct loan processes and 
HECO.) 

The second section shows cash received and spent on non-capital financing activities of the College. Here the college 
reports cash from state appropriations and cash related to federally-funded Pell grants. Thissection also includes any 
activity that cannot be reported in one of the other sections. State appropriations increased by $1.7 million. In FY 2013, 
the College did not report the portion of tuition that is directed to the SBCTC for SBCTC capital and other projects. For FY 
2014, $2.4 million is reported asa new 'use' and is a variance from the previous statement. 

The third section shows cash received and spent on capital and related financing activities. This includes state capital 
appropriations for major projects, minor works and repairs. It also includes cash proceeds, loan origination costs, 
interest and principal payments related to Certificates of Participation. The cash used by capital activities increased by 
$4 million in FY 2014, primarily due to the change in proceeds from financing related to the Corporate and Continuing 
Education building remodel. 
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Thefourth section shows cash received and spenton investing activities, including the purchase and saleof investment: 
instruments and  interest earnings.In FY 2014, the increase ofapproximately $1.9 million is primarilydue to the 
increased investment in bonds asapproved the by Board of Trustees. 

Following these four sections the statement provides the total increase in cash from beginning of theyearto the end of 
theyear. TheCollege's cash and cash equivalents at June 30th increased in FY2014 by $3.2 million. 

The lastsection of the statement includes a reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used solely by operating 
activities The cashused by operatingactivities is shown also in section one bysou rce and use. 

A condensed statement of cash flows is presented below. 

Condensed Statement ofCash Flows 
As of June 30th FY2014 FY2013 
Operating Activities $ (20,244,092) $ (24,678,34 1) 
Non-Capital Fina ncing Activities 28,880,708 29,524,045 
Capital Financing Activities (3,527,120) 541,496 
Investing Activities (1 ,898,164) 75,808 
Net Change in Cash $ 3,211,334 $ 5,463,008 
Cash Beginning of Year 14,625,054 9,162,046 
Cash End of Year $ 17,836,388 $ 14,625, 054 

Capital Assetsand Long-Term Debt Activities 
The communityand technical collegesystem submits a single prioritized request to the Office of Financial Management 
and the Legislature for appropriated capital funds, which includes major projects, minor projects, repairs, emergency 
·funds, alternative financing and major leases. The primary funding source for college capital projectsis state general 
obligation bonds. In recent years declining state revenuessignificantlyreduced the state's debt capacity and are 
expected to continue to impact the number of new projects that can be financed. 

At June 30, 2014, the College had invested $ 151,894,650 incapital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation This 
represents an decreaseof $1.1milllon from last year, as shown in the tablebelow.. 

Asset Type June 30, 2014 June30,2013 Change 

Land $ 8,558,859 $ 8,558,859 $ -
Construction in Progress 1,906,469 30,598,654 (28,692,185) 

Buildings , net 138,024,139 110,920,576 27,103,563 

Other Improvements and In frastructure, net 211,099 316,267 (105,168) 

Equipment, net 2,969,637 2,565,795 403,842 
Library Resources, net 224,447 86,021 138,426 

Total Capital Assets,Net $ 151,894,650$ 153,046,172$ (1,131,5·22) 

In FY2013, the college began construction on the "lndexreplacement" projent, Liberty Hall, which was completed in FY 
2014. Also in FY 2013, .the College began a remodel of the Corporateand Continuing Education Center (CCEC)facility on 

SeawayBoulevard in south Everett, which was completed in FY 2014. Completion ofthese projects resulted in a 
decrease to'construction inprogress' and an increase in 'buildings'. 

for FY 2014,the College had just over $20 million in outstanding debt related to capitalassets A significantportion of 
this debt is related to theStudent FitnessCenter, The FitnessCenter was financed with a 20 year Certificate of 
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Partcipation (COP). In 2007·, the student body approved a dedicated student fee as their contribution to payment of the 
Fitness Center COP. Additionaldebt includes the remodel ofCCEC,on-goingcapital leases for equipment inWhitehorse 
Hall along with a fiber optic infrastructure project. 

June 30, 2014 
CertificatesofParticipation $ 20,515,000 
Capital Leases 243,521 

Total $ 20,758,521 

Economic Factors That Will Affect the future 
Followinga trendthat began in FY 2009, the College's state operating appropriations continuedto decrease through FY 
2013. More recently, whencreating the 2013 - 2015 biennial budget, the state legislature re-invested in community 
and technical colleges. They continued this trend with a supplemental budget that included community colleges as a 
key partner in an investment in aerospace training. As aresult, the net reduction ofcommunity college funding 
between FY 2009 and expected funding levels by theend of FY 2015 will havebeen a little over 15 percentThese 
investments in community colleges allowedthe legislature to keep FY2014 tuition flat for resident, non-resident and 
baccalaureate students. It is unclear how much opportunity there may be foradditional investments in community and 
technical collegesin the· next few years, as state budget writers continue to grapple with court-mandated basic 
education obligations. 

Washington's Economic and Revenue Forecast Councilprepares independent forecasts quarterly throughout the year 
In its most recent forecast (February 2015), the council reports that Washington employment is expected to grow 2.9% 
in 2015 compared to the 2.3%that was forecasted ln their November 2014 forecast. Theupward revision to growth in 
2015 is mostly due to higher employment data through January. The February forecast for average annual employment 
growth, from 2016 through 2019 isnow 1.6% per year, upslightly from the 1.4·%growth rate forecasted in November 

Snohomish County 
Unemployment Rates 

12.00% 

10.00% 

8.00% 

$,10% 
4.00% 

2010 2012 2013 2014 

Local economic factors impact the College's enrollments which impactrevenue. Traditionally, the Collegehas high 
enrollment during economic downturns, punctuated by lower enrollment when thejob market rebounds Thejob 
market in Washington has shown significant improvement in the last five years as reflected in the unemployment rate. 

60



The College's enrollments continue to be strongand show some growth at about 39%each year This is dueto the 
College's strategy to diversify its sources of enrollment to expand course offerings in EastCounty / Monroe 
Additionally, the College has invested to expandinternational student recruiting efforts which will help to offset 
fluctuationsin enrollment du.e to the local economy, Locally,. the college engages local high school students in many 
ways, including the annual Students ofColorCareerConference attended by 2,500 studentsin 2015. Additionally, the 
College expanded its Ocean Research College Academy, a program that provides integrated study in marine science, 
resulting in dual high school and college credit Other dualcredit options including Running Start and College in the High 
school continue to grow, providing great educational opportunity to students and additional enrollments to theCollege. 

61



Independence •Respect• Integrity 

Financial Statements Audit Report 

Everett Community College 

For the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

Published September 14, 2015 

Report No. 1014847 

62



W·ashington State Auditor's Office 

September 14, 2015 

Board ofTrustees 
Everett Community College 
Everett, Washington 

Report on Financial Statements 

Please find attached our report on the Everett Community College's financial statements 

We are issuing this report in order toprovide information on the College's financial condition. 

Sincerely, 

JAN M. JUTTE,CPA, CGFM 

ACTING STATE AUDITOR 

OLYMPIA, WA 
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   STATEMENTS PERFORMED INACCORDANCE WITH 
     -' 

   GO VERNMENT A UDITING  STANDARDS  -  

Everett Community College 
July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

Board ofTrustees 
Everett Community College 
Everett, Washington 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in GovernmentAuditing 
Standards,issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the Everett 
Community College, Snohomish County, Washington, as of and for the year ended June 30, 

2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College's 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 11, 2015. Our report 
includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Everett 
Community College Foundation as described in our report on the College's financial statements. 
This report does not include the results of the other auditor's testing of internal controls over 
financial reponing or compliance and other matters that are reported separately by those other 
auditors. The financial sta.tements of the Everett Community College Foundation were not 
audited in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards. 

The financial statements of the Everett Community College, an agency of the state of 
Washington, are intended to present the financial position, and the changes in financial position, 
and where applicable, cash flows of only the respective portion of the activities of the state of 
Washington that is attributable to the transactions of the College and its aggregate discretely 
presented component units. They do not purport to, and do not present fairly the financial 
position of the state of Washington as of June 30, 2014, the changes in its financial position, or 
where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States or America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to 
this maner. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College's 
internalcontrol over financial reporting(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose ,of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College' s 
Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internalcontrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis A material weakness is a 

deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the College's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

In addition, we noted certain matters that we have reported to the management of the College in 
a separateletterdated September 10, 2015. 

COMPLlANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whetherthe College's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of the College's compliance with certain 
provisions of laws regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective ofour audit. and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, 
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PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the resultsof that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the College's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
perfom1ed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College' s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distriburion is not limited. It 
also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess 
government operations. 

JAN M. JUTTE, CPA, CGFM 

ACTING STATE AUDITOR 

OLYMPIA, WA 

August 1 1,2015 
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Everett Community College 
July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

Board ofTrustees 
Everett Community College 
Everett, Washington 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the 
aggregate discretely presented component units of the Everett Community·College, Snohomish 
County, Washington, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectivelycomprise the College's basic financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally acce.pted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
did not audit the financial statements of the Everett Community College Foundation, which 
represents 100 percent of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely 
presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose 
report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to amounts included 
for the Everett Community College Foundation is based solely on the report of the other 
auditors. 

We conductedour audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements or the Everett 
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Community College Foundation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor' s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the .auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the College's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statementsin,order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signi ficant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well ·as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial stal.emenls 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the Everett 
Community College, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and. 
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. 

Matters or Emphasis 

As discussed in Note I, the financial statements of the Everett Community College, an agency of 
the state of Washington, are intended to present the financial position, and the changes in 
financial position, and where applicable cash flows of only the respective portion of the 
activities of the state of Washington that is attributable to the transactions of the College and its 
aggregate discretely presented component units. They do nor purport to, and do not, present 
fairly the financial position of the state of Washington as of June 30, 2014, the changes in its 
financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 
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Other Ma tters 

RequiredSupplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management 's discussion and analysis be presented to supplemenr the basic financial statements. 
Such information although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or 
historical context We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistencywith management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basicfinancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
informationbecause the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated 
August 11,20 15 on our consideration of the College' s internal controlover financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations contracts and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose ofthat report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on internalcontrol over financial reporting or on compliance That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the College's internal control over financial reportingand compliance. . 

JAN M. JUTTE, CPA, COFM 

ACTING STATE AUDITOR 

OLYMPIA, WA 

August 11 , 2015 
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The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive 
branch of state government.The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and 
serves four-year terms. 

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision ofgovernment that works for 
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater 
public trust. 

In fulfi II in& our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public 
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and 
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees. 

As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively 
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards 
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws. 

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the 
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of 
higher education. In addi1ion, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local 

governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations. 

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available 
on our website and through our free, electronic subscriptionservice. 

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. and provide training and technical 
assistance to governments,and have an extensive quality assurance program. 

Contact information for the State Auditor's Office 

Deputy Director for Communications Thomas Shapley 

Thomas.Shapley@sao.wa.gov 

(360) 902-0367 
. 

Public Records requests (360) 725-5617 

Maintelephone (360)902-0370 

Toll-free Citizen Hotline (866) 902-3900 

Website www.sao.wa.gov 

71

www.sao.wa.gov
mailto:Thomas.Shapley@sao.wa.gov


Everett CommunityCollege 
StatementofNet Position 

June 30, 2014 

Limited assets 
Cashand cashequivalents 
Restricted cash 

16,719 201 
1,117,187 

Short-term investments 
6,674,913 Accounts Receivable 

Student Loans Receivable 
InterestReceivable 20,266 

95,152 Inventories 
PrepaidExpenses 

24,626,719 

Non-Current Assets 
Long-term Investments 
Student Loans Receivable 
Capital assets,net or depreciation 151,894,650 

163,916,093 
188,542,812 

DeferredOutflows of Resources 
Total Deferred OutflowsofResources 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
AccruedLiabilities 
Compensatedabsences 
Deposits Payable 
UnearnedRevenue 
LeasesandCertificatesof ParticipationPayable 

21,388 
3,528,699 
1,06 1,251 

Total current liabilities 8,720,198 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
CompensatedAbsences 
Long-termliabilities 

2,611,916 
19,697,270 
22.309,185 
31,029,384 

Deferred Inflowsof Resources 
Total Deferred Inflows ofResources 

Net Position 

Net InvestmentCapital Assetsin 
Restrictedfor 

Nonexpendable 
Expendable 

Student Loans 
24,925,091 

157,513,428 

188,542,812 
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Everett CommunityCollege 
Statement ofRevenues Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

for theYear Ended June 30, 2014 

Operating Revenues 
Student tuition and fees, net 25,842,330 

Auxiliary enterprise sales 1,664,385 
State and local grants and contracts 13,342,176 
Federal grants and contracts 3,469,863 
Other operating revenues 1,588,593 

Totaloperating revenue 45,897,347 

Operating Expenses 
Operating Expenses 7,415,534 
Salaries andwages 34,912,196 
Benefits 10,937,424 
Scholarships and fellowships 7,798,539 
Supplies and materials 1,882,201 
De preciation 4,555,700 
Purchased services 4,227, 184 

Utilities 925,954 
72,654,732 

(26,757,385) 

Non-Operating Revenues 

State appropriations 21,678,189 

FederalPell grant revenue 7,885,985 
investment income, gains and losses .84,858 

Net non-operating revenues 

Non-Operating Expenses 
Building fee and Innovation fee ·2,355,·559 
Losson disposalof fixedassets 246,997 
Intereston indebtedness 936,548 

Net non-operating expenses 3,539,104 

Income or (loss) beforeother revenues, expenses, gains, or losses 1,352,543 
Capital Revenues 

Capitalappropriations 

3,058,169 

Net Position 
Net position beginning of year,as restated 
Net position, end of year 157,513,428 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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Everett Community College 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Forthe Year 2014r Ended June 30, 

Cash flowfromoperating activities 
Studenttuition and fees 25,156,100 
Grants and contracts 16,803,171 
Paymentsto vendors (3,873,713) 
Paymentsfor utilities (782,486)
Paymen ts toemployees 
Payments forbenefits (10,818,608) 

(34,486,010)

Auxiliary enterprise 7,163,825sales 
Paymentsfor scholarshipsand fellowships (7,798,539) 
Other receipts (payments) (7,317,832) 

Netcashusedby operatingactivities 

cash flow from noncapital financing activities 
State appropriations 23,350,282 
Pell grants 7,885,985 
Buildingand Innovation Fee (2,355,559) 

Net cash provided by noncapital 28,880,708financing 

Cashflow from capitaland related financing activities 
Capital appropriations 2,517,255 
Purchasesofcapital assets (3,945,759) 
Principalpaid on capital debt (1,162,068) 
Interestpaid (936,548) 

Netcashusedby capital and related financial (3,527,120) 

Cash flowfrom investingactivities 
Purchaseof Investments (4,983,022) 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of Investments 3,000,000 
Income of Investments 84,858 

Net usedby investing activities 

3,211,334 

14,625,054 

Adjustmentsto reconcile net loss tonetcashused by operating ac..tivities 

Receivables, net 1,224,859 
Inventories 30,234 
Accounts Payable 649,501 

Accruedliabilities (50,322) 
Unearned revenue 49,990 
Compensated absences 59,224 
Deposits payable 14,107 

Net cashused byoperating activities 
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EVERETTCOMMUNITY COLLEGEFOUNDATION 
STATEMENTS OFFINANCIAL POSITION 
June 30, 2014 (Audited) and 2013 (Reviewed) 

2013 
(As Restated) 

CURRENTASSETS: 
Cash $ 798,273 $ 659,178and cash equivalents 
Short-term investments 370,423 447,426 
Current portion of pledges receiv able, net 76,207 28,382 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,134,986 

OTHERASSETS: 
Pledges receivable, net of currentportion 59,144 122,156 
Equipment, net 12,831 45,278 
Long-term investments 2,523,498 2,213,600 
Cash restricted for endowment 365,298 471,514 
Assets field incharitable trust 0 55,766 
Collection items l76,601 176,601 

TOTALOTHER ASSETS 3,167,372 3,084,915 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable andaccrued expenses 20,000 

LIABILITYUNDER CHARITABLETRUST 0 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 930,551 
Temporarily restricted 1,348,674 
Permanently restricted 2,063,050 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

S 4,219,901 
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EVERETT COMMUNITYCOLLEGE FOUNDATION 
STAATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 (Audited) 

Unrestricted 
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Permanently 
Restricted Total 

REVENUES,GAINS,AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Contributions $ 61,179 $ 375,602 $ 48,400 
In-kind contributions 171,181 36,433 0 

Special events revenue 71,866 0 0 
Contract revenue 50,160 0 0 
Investment income 9,384 52,210 0 
Net realized andunrealized gain 

on investments 29,385 206,861 0 
Change in value ofsplit-interest 

agreement 0 0 7,382 
Net assets released from restrictions 548,635 (548,635) 0 

$ 485,181 
207,614 
71,866 
50,160 
6t,:;Q4 

236,246 

7,382 
0 

TOTALREVENUES, GAINS, ANDOTHER 
SUPPORT 941,790 122,471 55,782 1,120,045 

EXPENSES 
Collegeprogram support 
Scholarships 

284,885 
277,238 

0 

0 

0 

0 
284,885 
277,238 

Total program support 562,123 0 0 562,123 

Administration 
Fundraising 

194,421 
152,525 

0 
0

0 
D 

194,421 
152,525 

Total support services 346,946 0 D 346,946 

TOTALEXPENSES 509,069 0 D 509,069 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 32,721 122,471 55,782 210,974 

NETASSETS ATBEGINNINGOF YEAR 897,830 1,226,203 2,007 ,268 4,151,301 

NETASSETSAT ENDOF YEAR $ 530,551 $ 1,348,674 $ 2,063,050 $ 4,342,275 

t 
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EVERETT COLLEGEFOUNDATIONCOMMUNITY 
STATEMENTOF ACTIVITIES 

For theYear Ended June30, 2013 (Reviewed), As Restated 

Unresttricted 
Temporarily 

Restricted 
Permanently 
Restricted Total 

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHERSUPPORT 
Contributions 
In-kind con tribu tio ns 

Special eventsrevenue 
Contract revenue 
Investmentincome 
Net realized andunrealized gain 

on investments 
Changein value ofsplit-interest 

agreement 
Net assetsreleased from restrictions 

$ 60,349 $ 371,165 $ 211,000 
83,301 81,248 0 
68,058 0 0 
46,996 0 I) 

8,944 51,072 0 

18,777 132,5170 

0 0 1,747 
899,745 (899,745) 0

$ 642,514
164,549 

68,058 
46,996
60,016 

151,294 

1,747 
0 

TOTAL REVENUES, GAlNS. AND OTHER 
SUPPORT 1,186,170 (263,743) 212,747 1,135,174 

EXPENSES 
College program support 

Scholarships 
753,922 
227,576 

0 
C 

0 
0 

753,922 
227,576 

Totalprogram support 981,498 0 n 981,498 

Administration 
Fundraising 

187,271 
69,865 

0 
0 

D 
0 

187,271 
69,865 

Total Support services 257,136 0 0 257,136 

TOTALEXPENSES 1,238,634 0 0 1,238,634 

CHANGE IN NETASSETS (52,464) (263,743) 212,747 (103,460) 

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNlNGOF YEAR 
as previously reported 1,050,294 1,489.946 1,794,521 4,334,761 

PRIOR PERIODADJUSTMENT-seeNote 16 (100,000) 0 0 (100,000) 

NETASSETS ATBEGINNING OF YEAR 
as restated 950,294 1,489,946 1,794,521 4,234,761 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 897,830 $ 1,226,203 $ 2,007,268 54,131,301 

: 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 2014 
These notes forman integral part ofthefinancial statements. 

1. Summaryof SignificantAccounting Policies 

Financial Reporting Entity 
EverettCommunity College (the College) is a comprehensive community college offering open-
door academic programs, workforce, education, basic skills, and community services. The 
College confers associates degrees, certificates, and high school diplomas It is governed by a 
five-member Board ofTrustees appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the state Senate. 

The College is an agency ofthe State of Washington. The financial activity of the college is 
included in the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

The Everett Community College Foundation (the Foundation) is a separate but affiliated non
profitentity,  incorporated under Washington law in 1984 and recognized as a tax exempt 

 501(c)(3) charity. The Foundation 's charitable purpose is to provide scholarships to students, 
professional development opportunities ·to faculty and staff, equipment, to aid in the teaching 
process,and financial assistance to the College to meet its greatest needs as may be determined 
by the Foundation Board of. Directors. Because the majority of theFoundation's income and 
resources are restricted by donors and may only be used for the benefitofthe college or its 
students, the Foundation is considered a discrete component unit based on the criteria contained 
in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Nos. 61, 39 and 14. A 
discrete component unit is an entity which is legally separate from the College, but has the 
potential to provide significant financial benefits to the College.or whose relationship with the 
College is suchthat excluding it would cause tl\e College's financial statements to be misleading 
or incomplete. 

The Foundation's financial statements are discretely presentedin this report. Intra-entity 
transactions and balances between the College and theFoundation are not eliminated for 
financial statement presentation. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the Foundation 
distributed approximately $562, 123to the College for restricted and unrestricted purposes. A 
copy of the Foundation's complete financial statements may be obtainedfrom the Foundation's 
Administrative Offices at 2000 Tower Street Everett, WA 98201. 

Basis of Presentation 
The College all financial in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Ba .sicFinancial Statements and Management 
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments as amended by GASBStatement No. 
35, Basic Financial Statementsand Management Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges 
and Universities. For financial reporting purposes, the, College is considered, a special-purpose 
government engaged only inBusiness Type Activities (BTA). In accordance with BTA 
reporting, the Collegepresents a Management's Discussion and Analysis; a Statement of Net 
Position; a Statement of Revenues,  Expenses and Changes in Net Position; a Statement ofCash 

follows GASBpronouncements. The statements have been prepared 
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Flows; and Notes to the Financial Statements. The format provides a comprehensive, entity-
wideperspective of the college's assets, deferredinflows, liabilities, deferredoutflows, net 
position, revenues, expenses, changes innet position,andcash flows. 

NewAccounting Pronouncements 

In March 2012,the GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities (GASB 65), which establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that 
reclassify1. as deferred outflows ofresources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that 
were previousl y reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or 

inflows of resources,certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. GASB 
65 foris efffective financial statementsfor periods beginning after December 15, 20 12. The
college did not make any change as a result of this pronouncement. 

In June 2012,the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions (GASB 68), which improves accounting and financial reporting by state and local 
governments for pensions. Thisstatement also supersedes GASB Statement No. 27,Accounting 
for Pensions byState and Local Governmental Employers,as well as GASB Statement No. 50, 
Pension Disclosures GASB68 is effective for fiscal years beginning afterJune 1.5, 20 l4. The 
impact of this pronouncement isuncertain at this  time. 

In April 2013,the GASB issued Statement No·. 70, AccountingandFinancial Reporting for 
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, which improves recognition, measurement and disclosure 
guidance for state and local governments that have extended or receivedfinancial guarantees that 
are nonexchange transactions GASB 70 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2013. The colleges did not make any changes as a result of this pronouncement . 

Basis ·of Accounting 
The financial statements of the Collegehave been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Underthe accrual basis, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded whenan obligation has been incurred, 
regardless of the timing ofthe cash flows. 

Non-exchangetransactions, in which the College receives (or gives) value without directly 
giving (or receiving) equal value in exchange includesstate and federal appropriations,and 
certain grants and donations. Revenues are recognized, net of estimated uncollectible amounts, 
as ·soonas all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met, if probable of 
collection. 

The preparation of financialstatements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptionsthat affect the reported amounts ofassets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities atthe date.ofthe financial sattements and the reported amounts of revenue 
and ex,penses.during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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During the course ofoperations, numerous transactions occur between funds for goods provided 
and services rendered. For the financial statements, interfund receivables and·payables have 
,generally been eliminated. However, revenues and expensesfrom the College's auxiliary 
enterprisesare treated as though the College were dealing with private vendors. Forall other 
funds, transactions that are reimbursements ofexpensesare recorded as reductions of expense. 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank demand deposits, and deposits with the 
Washington State Local GovernmentInvestment Pool(LGIP). Cash in the investment portfolio 
'is not included in cash and cash equivalents as .it is .held for investing purposes. Cash and cash 
equivalents that are held with the intent to fund College operationsare classified as current assets 
alongwith operating funds invested in the LGIP. Endowment investments are classified as 

noncurrent ·assets. The College records all cash, cash equivalents, and investments at amortized 
cost, which approximates fair value. 

The College combines unrestricted cash operating funds from all departments into an internal 
investment pool, the income from which is allocated on a proportional basis. The internal 
investment pool is comprised of cash,cash equivalents and U.S. Agency securities. 

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts recei vable consists of tuition and fee charges to students and auxiliary enterprise 
servicesprovided to students, faculty and staff. This also includes amounts due from federal, 
state and localgovernments or private sourcesasallowed under the terms of grants and 
contracts. Where applicable, accounts receivable includesproceeds from Certificates of 
Participation that have not yet been received from•the StateTreasurer. Accounts rece.ivable are 
shown net of estimated uncollectable amounts. 

Inventories 
Inventories, consisting primarily of suppliesused by aviation and cosmetology programs, are 
valued at cost using the first in, first out method. 

Capital Assets 
In accordancewith state law, capital.assets constructed with .state funds are owned by the State 
of Washington. Property titles are shown accordingly. However,responsibility for managing 
the assets rests with the College. As a result, the assets are included in the financial statements 
because excluding them would have been misleading to the reader. 

Land, buildings and equipment are recorded at cost, or if acquired 'by gift, at fair market value at 
the date ofthe gift. Capital additions, replacements and major renovations are capitalized. The 
value of assets constructed includes all material direct and indirect construction costs. Any 
interest costs incured are capitalized •during the period ofconstruction.Routine repairs and 
maintenance are charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense was incurred. In 
accordance with the state capitalization policy, all land, intangible assets and software with a unit 
cost of$1,000,000or more, buildings and improvements with a unit cost of $100,000 or more, 
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library collections with a total cost of $5,000 or more and all other assets with a unit cost of 
$5.000 or more are capitalized. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight line method over theestimated usefullives of the 
assets as defined by the State of Washington's Office of Financial Management. Useful lives 
range from 15 to 50 years for buildings and improvements, 3 to 50 years for improvements other 
than buildings 7 years for library resources and 2 to 10 years for most equipment·and 11 to 40 
years for heavy duty equipment, aircraft, locomotives and vessels. 

In accordance with GASB Statement 42, the collegereviews assets for impairment whenever 
events or changesin circumstances have indicated that thecarrying amount of its assets might 
not be recoverable.Impaired assets are reported at the lower ofcost or fair value. At June 30, 
2014, no assets had .been written down. 

Unearned Revenues 
Unearned revenues occur when funds have been collected prior to the end of the fiscal year but 
related to the subsequent fiscal year. 'The College has recorded summer quarter tuition and fees 
and housing deposits as unearned revenues. 

Tax Exemption 
The College is a tax-exempt organization under the provisions of Section I 15 ( l) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income. 

Net Position 
The College's net position. is classified as follows. 

• Net Investment in Capital Assets. This represents the College's total investment in capital 
assets, net of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. 

• Restricted forNonexpendable . This consists ofendowment andsimilar type funds for 
which donors orother outside sources have stipulated as a condition of the gift instrument 
that the principal ·is to be maintained inviolateand in perpetuity and invested for the 
purpose of producing present and future income which may either be·expended or added 
to the principle. 

• Restricted for Loans. The loan funds are established for the explicit purpose of providing 
student support as prescribed by statuteor granting authority. 

• Restricted for Expendable. These include resourcesthe College is legally or contractually 
obligated to•spend in accordancewith restrictions imposed by third parties. 

• Unrestricted. These represent resources derived from student tuition and fees, and sales 
and services of educational departments and auxiliary enterprises. 

Classification of Revenues 
The College has classified its revenues as either operating or non-operating revenues according 
to the following criteria: 
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Operating Revenues. This includes activities that have the characteristics ofexchange 
transactions such as (1) student tuition and fees, net ofwaivers and scholarship discounts and 
allowances, (2) sales and servicesof auxiliary enterprises,and (3) most federal, state and local 
grants and contracts 

Non-operating Revenues. This includes activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange 
transactions, such as gifts and contributions, state appropriations and investment income. 

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 
Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported·net•of 
scholarship discounts and allowances in the Statements of Revenues,. Expenses and Changes in 
NetPosition. Scholarship discounts and allowancesare the difference between the stated charge 
for goods and servicesprovided .by the College, and the amount that is paid by students and/or 
third parties making payments on.the students' behalf. Certain governmental grants, such as Pell 
grants and other Federal, Stateor non-governmental programs are recordedas either operating 
or non-operating revenues in the College's financial statements. To the extent that revenues 
from such programsare used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College 
has recorded a scholarship discount and allowance. Discounts and allowances for the year ending· 
June.30,.2014, are $7,116,527. 

State Appropriations 
The state of Washington appropriates funds to the College onboth an annual and.biennial basis. 
Theserevenues are reportedasnon-operating revenues on the Statements of Revenues. 
Expenses and. Changes in Net Position, .and :recognized as such whenthe related expenses are 
incurred. 

OperatingExpenses 
Operating include salaries, benefits, utilities, materials, 
purchased services, and depreciation. All other revenue and expenses of the College arereported 
as nonoperating revenues and expenses including state general appropriations, Federal Pell grant 
revenues, investment incomeand _interest expense. 

expenses wages, fringe supplies and 

2. Cash and Investments 
Cash and·cash equivalents include bank demand deposits pettycash held at the Collegeand unit 
,shares in tbe Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). The LGIP is comparable to,a Rule 2a-
7 money..market fund recognized by the Securities and Exchange Commission ( 17 CFR 270.2a-
7). Rule 2a-7·fundsare limited to high quality obligations with limited maximum andaverage 
maturities the effect of whichis to minimizeboth the marketand credit risk. The LGIPis an 
unratedin vestment pool. 

As of June30, 2014,the carryingamount of theCollege's cash and equivalents was $17,836,388 
as represented in the table below. 
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Table 1: Cashand CashEquivalents June 30, 2014 
Petty Cash and Change Funds $7,845 
BankDemandand Time Deposits $17,760,217 
Local Government Investment Pool $68,326 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $l7,836,388 

Investments consist ofU..s. Agency bonds. All bonds held by the College are obligations ofthe 
United States or its agencies . As of June 30, 2014, the fair value of Investments was $12,021,443 
with maturities ranging from 1-5 years. 

Custodial Credit Risks -- Deposits 
Custodial credit risk for bank demand deposits is the risk that in the event ofa bank failure, the 
College's deposits may not be returned to it.The majority of the College's demand deposits are 
with the US Bank. All cash and equivalents, except for changefunds and pettycash held by the 
College, are insured by the Federal Deposit 1ns.urance Corporation (FDlC) or by collateral held 
by the WashingtonPublic Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). 

Interest Rate Risk -- Investments 
The College manages its exposure to interest rate changes by limiting the duration of investments 
to mature atvarious points in the year. The portfolio average maturity is three years or less. 

Concentration of Credit Risk -- Investments 
State law limits College operating investments to the highest quality sectors of the domestic 
fixed income market and specifically excludes corporatestocks,corporate and foreignbonds, 
futures, contracts, commodities, real estate, limited partnerships and negotiable certificates of 
deposit, College policy does not limit the amount the College may invest in any one issuer. 

Custodial Credit Risk -- Investments 
Custodial creditrisk for investments is the risk thatin the event of the failure of the counterparty 
toa transaction, the College will not be able to recover the value of investmentor collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. At June 30, 2014, none ofthe College's 
investments are exposedto custodial credit risk because the investments are held by USBank 
Safekeeping of Washington in the College's name. 

3. AccountsReceivable 
Accounts receivable consists of tuitionand fee charges to students and auxiliary enterprise 
services providedto students, faculty and staff. It also includes amounts due from federal, state 
and local governments orprivate sources in connection with reimbursementsof allowable 
expenditures made according to sponsoredagreements. At June 30,20 14,accounts receivable 
were as follows: 
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Table 2: AccountsReceivable Amount 
Student Tuitionand Fees $ 2,268,308 
Due from the Federal Government $ 1 19,000 
Due from OtherState Agencies $ 4,531, 181 
Auxiliary Enterprises $ 201,846  

Subtotal $ 7,120,335 
Less Allowance for UncollectibleAccounts $ (445,422) 
Accounts Receivable, ne t $ 6,674,913 

4. I nventories 
Inventories,stated at cost using first in, first out method, consisted of consumable inventories in 
the amount of $95,152 ofJune 30, 2014. 

5. CapitalAssets 
Asummary of the changes in capital assets for theyear endedJune 30, 20 14is presentedas 
follows . The current year depreciation expense was$4,555,700. 
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' Begi nni ng Additions/
Table 3:CapitalAssets Retirements EndingBalanceBalance Transfers 

Nondepreciablecapital assets 
Land $ 8,558,859 $ - $ - $ 8,558,859 

Construction in progress 30,598,654 215,063 28,507,248 1,905,469 
Total nondepreciablecapital assets 39,157,513 215,063 28,907,248 10,465,328 

Depreciable capitalassets 

Buildings 142,434,361 30,036,885 234,980 172,236,266 
Other improvements and infrastru 812,213 0 345,572 467,641 
Equipment 7,046,015 1,251,161 16,372 8,280,804 
Libraryresources 1,924,713 0 1,425,057 499,636 

 Subtotaldepreciable capitalassets 152,218,302 31,288,046 2,02 1,981 181,484,367 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Buildings 31,513,785 3,692,110 995,768 34,212,127 
Other improvements and in frastru 496,946 15,588 255,992 256,542 

Equipment 4,480,220 846,002 15,055 5,311,167 
Library resources 1,838,692 0 1,563,483 275,209 

Total accumulated depreciation 38,329,643 4,555,700 2,830,298 40,055,045 

Total depreciable capital assets 11 3,888,659 26,732,346 (808,317) 14 1,429,322 

6. AccountsPayable andAccruedLiabilities 
At June 30, 20 14, accrued liabilities are the following. 

Table 4: Accounts Paya and Accrued Liabilities Amount 
Amounts Owed to Employees $ 1,570,107 
Accrued Liabilities .$ 1,014,022 
Accounts Payable $ 1,4.55,418 
A mounts Held for Others and Retainage $ 95,701 
Total $ 4,135,248 

7. UnearnedRevenue 
Unearnedrevenue is comprised of receiptswhich have not yet met revenue recognition criteria 
as follows. 
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Table 5: Unearned Revenue Amount 
Summer Quarter Tuition& Fees $ 3,422,979 

Housing and OtherDeposits 100,720 

Total Unearned Revenue $ 3,523,699 

8. Risk Management 
The College, inaccordance with state policy, pays unemployment claims on a pay-as- you-go 
basis. Payments made for claimsfrom July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, were $102,316... 

The College purchases commercial properly insurance throughtbe master property program 
administered by the Department ofEnterprise Services for buildings that were acquired with 
COPproceeds. The poli'cy has a deductible of $250,000 per occurrence and the policy limit is 
$100,000,000 per occurrence. The college has had no claims in excess ofthe coverage amount 

within the past three years. The College assumes its potential property lossesfor most other 
buildings and contents. 

The College participates in a State of Washington risk management self-insurance program, 
which covers its exposure totort, general damage and vehicle claims. Premiums paid to the State 
are based on actuarially determined projections and include allowances for paymentsof both 
outstanding and current liabilities. Coverage is provided up to $10,000,000 for each claim with 
no deductible The college has had no claims in excess of the coverage amount within the past 
three years. 

9. Compensated Absences 
At termination of employment, employees may receive cash payments for all accumulated 
vacation and compensatorytime. Employees who retire get 25% of the value oftheir 
accumulated sick leave either credited to aVoluntary Employees' BeneficiaryAssociation 
(VEBA) account, which can be used for future medical expenses and insurance purposes, or a 
cashpayout based on an annual vote of union retirees. The amounts of unpaid vacation and 
compensatory time accumulated by College employees are accrued when incurred.The sick 
leave liability is recorded as an actuarial estimate of one-fourth the total 
balance on the payroll records. The accrued vacation leave totaled $ 1,345,863 and accrued sick 
leave totaled $1,266,053 at June 30, 2014. 

Accrued annual and sick leave arecategorized as non-current liabilities. Compensatory time is 
categorized as a current liabilitysince it mustbe used before other leave. 

10.. Leases Payable 
The College finances some capital asset purchases through the Washington State Treasurer's 
leasing program... These areclassified as capital, leases. The Collegealso has leases for student 
residences, classroom space and other assets with various vendors. These leases are classified as 
operating leases. As ofJune 30, 2014,the minimum lease payments under capital leases and 
operating leases consist of the following. 
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Table 6: LeasesPayable 
Fiscalyear CapitalLeases Operating Leases

2015 86,155 489,870 

2016 89,455 493,295 
2017  
2018 

 1 

 I
87,155 

0 

410,632 

174,827 
 

2019 0 57,147 

2020-2024 0 168,056 
2025-2029 0 068,056   
2030-2034 0 168,056 
2035-2039 

2040 2044 
0 

0 

168,056 

92,431 
Total minimu m lease payments 262,765 2,390,426 
Less Amount representing interest 19,243 
Netpresent value $ 243,522 $ 2,390,426 

 

11. Notes Payable 
In August, 2012, the College obtained financing to remodel the Corporate and Continuing 
Education Building through a certi ficate ofparticipation (COP), issued by the Washington State 
Treasurer (OST) in the amount of $3,545,000. The interest rate charged is approximately
3.103%. ..  

InAugust, 2009, the College obtained financing to build the Health Education & Fitness Center 
through certificates ofparticipation (COP), issued by the Washington Office,ofStateT reasurer 
(OST) in the amount of $20,440,000. Students assessed themselves, on a quarterly basis, a 
mandatory fee to service the debt starting in 20 11.The interest rate charged isapproximately 
4.463%. 

Student fees related to the Health Education & Fitness Center COP are accoumed for in a 
dedicated fund, which is used to pay a portion of theprincipal and interest, not comingout of the 
general operating budget. The College' s debt service requ irements for these note agreementsfor 
the next five years and thereafter are listed below. 

12. Annual Debt Service Requirements 
Future debt service requirements at June 30, 2014 are asfollows. 
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Annual Debt Service Requirements 

Certificates of Participation CapitalLeases 
Fiscal year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 
2015 $ 985,000 $ 890,263 $ 1,875,263 $ 76,25 1 $ 9,904 s 86,155 
2016 1,015,000 859,513 1,874,513 82,943 6,512 89,455 
2017 1,050,000 826,033 1,876,033 84,327 2,828 87,155 
2018 1,090,000 783,383 1,873,383 
2019 1,140,000 739,108 1,879,108 
2020-2024 6,445,000 2,937,694 9,382,694 
2025-2029 8,040,000 1,348,610 9,388,610 

2030-2034 750,000 60,800 810,800 

2035-2039 
2040 -2044 

Total 20,515,000 8,445,404 28,960,404 243,521 19,344 261,765 

13.Schedule of Long Term Debt 

 Balance Balance 
out standing outstanding Current 

6/30/13 Additions Reductions 6/30/14 portion 

Certificates of Participation $ 21,470,000 $ . $ 955,000 $ 20,515,000$ 985,000 
Capital leases 450,589 0 207,068 243,521 76,251 

Compensated Absences 2,542,692 1,225,499 1,156,275 2,611,916 0 

Total 1 24,463,281 
. 

$ 1,225,499 
.

$ 2,318,343 $ 23,370,437 $ 1,061,251 

14.Pension Plans 
The College offers three contributory pension plans. The Washington State Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) and Teachers Retirement System (TRS) plans are cost sharing 
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the State of Washington 
Department of Retirement Services. The State Board Retirement Plan.(SBRP) is a multiple 
employer definedcontribution plan for thefaculty and exempt administrative and professional 
staff of the State's public community and technical colleges. The plan includes supplemental 
payment, when required. The plan is administeredby the State Board for Community and 
Technical Colleges (SBCTC). 

For FY20 13-14, the payroll for the College's employees was $10,46 1,542for PERS, $365,469 
tor TRS,and $20,000,958for SBRP. Total covered payroll was$30,827 ,969. 

PERSand TRS 
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Plan Descriptions. PERS Plan l provides retirement and disability benefits and minimum benefit 
increases to eligible nonacademic plan members hired prior to October 1, 1977. PERS Plans 2 
and 3 provide retirement and disability benefits and a cost-of-livingadjustment to eligible 
nonacademic plan members hired on or after October l, 1977. Retirement benefits are vested 
after five years ofeligible service. PERS Pinn 3 has a defined contribution componentthat 
members may elect to self-direct as established by the Employee RetirementBenefits Board. 
PERS 3 defined benefit planbenefits are vested after an employee completes five years of 
eligibleservice. 

TRS Plan 3 provides retirement benefits to certain eligible faculty hired on or after October 1, 
1977. The plan includes both a defined benefit portion and a defined contribution portion. The 
defined benefit portionis funded by employer contributions only. Benefits are vested afteran 
employee completes five or ten ·yearsofeilgible service, depending on the employee's age and 
service credit, and include an annualcost-of-living adjustment. The defined contri.bution 
component is fully funded by employee contributions and investment performance. 

The authority toestablish and amend benefit provisions resides with the legislature . . PERS and 
TRS issue publicly available financial reports tbat include financial statements and required 
supplementary information. The report maybe obtained by writing to the Department of 
Retirement Systems, PO Box 48380, Olympia, Washington98504-8380 or online at 
http://www.drs. wa.gov/administration. 

Funding Policy. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts PERS and TRS Plan l 
employercontribution rates, Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates, and Plan 3 
employer contribution rates. Employee contribution rates for PERS and TRS Plans 1'are 
established by statute. By statute, PERS 3 employees may select among six contribution rate 
options, ranging from 5 to 15 percent. 

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage or current year covered payroll are 
shown in the table below. The College and the employeesmade 100%of required contributions. 

Contribution Rates.and Required Contributions. The College's contribution rates and required 
contributions for the above retirementplans for the years ending June30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 
are as fol lows: 
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ContributionRates at June 30 

  

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 

Emp loy ee College EmployeeCollegeEmployee College 

'PERS 

Plan 1 6.00% 7.08% 6.00% 7.21% 6.00% 9.21% 

Plan 2 4.64% 7.08% 4.64% 7.21% 4.92% 9.21% 

Plan 3 5- 15% 7.08% 5-15% 7.21-% 5-15% 9.21% 

TRS 

Plan 1 6.00% 8.04% 6.00% 8.05% 6.00%10.39% 
Plan 2 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 4.96% 10.39% 
Plan 3 5-15% 8.04% 5-15% 8.05% 5-15% 10.39% 

RequiredContributions 

 

 

 

 

 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 
Employee College Employee College Employee College 

PERS 
Plan 1 $ 14,652 $ 17,555 $ 11,322 $ 13,606 $ 11,732$ 18,003 
Plan 2 $ 341,974$ 530,973 $ 357,658 $ 555,760 $ 413,465 $ 773,899 

Plan 3 $ 73,922 $ 83,999 $ 88,725 $ 101,607$ 117,836 $ 167,846 

TRS 

Plan 1 $ 11,813$ 15,513 $ 1 1,909 15,975 $ 12,177$ 20,644$ ,. 

Plan2 $ 3,311 $ 5,723 $ 3,475 $ 5,964 626 $ 1,074$ 
k-Plan 3 $ $ - $ 3,895 $ 4,620 $ 9,694 $ 15,116 

State Board RetirementPlan 
Plan Description. Faculty andexempt administrative and professional staff are eligibleto 
participate in SBRP. The Teacher's Insurance and Annuity Association (TIAA) and the College 
Retirement Equities Fund (CREF) are the companionorganizations through which individual 
retirement annuitiesare purchased . Employees have at all times a 100% vested interestin their 
accumulations. 

TIAA-CREF benefitsare payableupon terminationat the member' s option unless the participant 
is re-employed in another institutionwhich participates in TIAA-CREF. 

The Plan hasa supplemental paymentcomponentthat guarantees a minimum retirement benefit 
goal based upon a one-time calculationat each employee's retirement date. The SBCTCmakes 
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direct paymentson behalf,of the College to qualifying retirees when theretirement benefit 
provided by TIAA-CREFdoes not meet the benefit goal. Employees areeligible for a non-
reduced supplemental payment after the age of 65 with ten years of full-timeservice. 

The minimum retirement benefit goal is 2% or the averageannual salary for each year of full-
time service up to a maximum of 25years. However, if the participantdoes not elect to make the 
10% TIAA-CREF contributionafter age 49, the benefit goal is 1.5% for each year of full-time 
service for those years the lower contribution rate is selected. 

The StateBoardfor Community and Technical Colleges is authorized to amend benefit 
provisions under RCW 28B,10,400. In 2011 , the plan was amended to eliminate the 
supplemental benefit provisions for all employees hired after June30, 2011. 

Contributions. Contribution rates for the SBRP (TIAA-CREF),which are based upon age, are 
5%, 7.5% or 10% of salaryandarematched by the College. Employee and employer 
contributionsfor the year ended June30, 2014 were each $1,755,270. 

The SBRP supplemental pension benefits are unfunded. For the year ended June 30,2014, 
supplemental benefits were paid by the SBCTCon behalf of the College in theamount of 
$8,280.54. In 2012, legislation(RCW 28B,10.423) was passed requiring colleges to pay into a 
Supplemental Benefit Fund managed by the State Investment Board, for the purpose of funding 
future benefitobligations. During FY 2014, the College paid into this fund ·at a rate of 0.5% of 
covered salaries, totaling $99,894.26. As ofJune30, 20 14, the Communityand Technical 
Collegesystemaccounted for $5,008,355 fof the und balance. 

Washington State Deferred Compensation Program 
The College, through the state of Washington, offers its employees a deferred compensationplan 
created under InternalRevenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all State employees, 
permits individuals to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The state of Washington 
administers theplan on behalf of the College's employees. Thedeferred compensation is not 
available to employees until termination, retirement or unforseeable financial emergency. The 
College does not have access to the funds. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits 
Health care and life insurance programs for employees of the state ofWashington are 
administered by theWashington State Health CareAuthority (HCA). The HCA calculates the 
premium amounts each year that are sufficient to fund the statewide health and life insurance 
programson a pay-as-you-go basis. These costs are passed through to individual state agencies 
based upon active employee headcount; theagenciespay the premiums for active employees to 
the HCA. The agencies may also charge employees for certain higher cost options elected by the 
employee... 

Stateof Washington retirees mayelect coverage through state health and life insurance plans, for 
which they pay less than the full cost of the benefits, based on their age and other demographic 
factors.The health care premiums for active employees,which are paid by the agency during. the 
employees' working careers, subsidize the "underpayments"of retirees. An additional factor in 
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-------------

Expenses by Functional Classification 
Instruction $ 36,665,786 

Academic Support Services 4,770,350 
Student Services 5,070,101 
Institutional Support 7,572,593 
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 5,087,333 
Scholarshipsand Other Student Financial Aid 5,792,043 
Auxiliary enterprises 3,189,657 
Depreciation 4,506,869 

Total operatingexpenses $ 72,654,732 

the,Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) obligation is a paymentthat is required by the 
State Legislature to reduce the premiums for retirees covered by Medicare (an "explicit" 
subsidy). This ex plicit subsidy is also passed through t o state agencies via activeemployee rates 
chargedto the agency. There is no formal state or College plan that under1ies the subsidy of 
retiree health and life insurance. 

The actuary allocated the statewide disclosure information ,to the community an.d technical 
college system level. The SBCTC furtherallocated these amounts among the colleges. The 
College's share ofthe GASB 45 actuarially accrued liability (AAL) is $13,997, 121 withan 
annual required contribution(ARC) of $1,367,526. The ARC represents the amortization of the 
liability for fiscal year 20 14 plus the current expensefor active employees, which is reduced by 
the current contributions of approximately $257,305. The College's net OPEB obligation (NOO) 
at June30, 2014 was approximately$1,110,221. This amount is not includedin the College's 
financial statements. 

The College paid $5,220,390 for healthcare expenses in 2014, which included its pay-as-you-go 
portion of the OPEB liability. 

15.Operating Expenses by Program 
In the Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in NetPosition, operating expenses arc
displayed by natural classifications, such as salaries,benefits, and supplies.The table below 
summarizes operating expenses by program or function .such as instruction, research,and 
academic support. The following table lists operating expenses by program for the year ending 
June 30, 2014. 

16. Commitments and Contingencies 
There is a class action filed against the State of Washington on behalf ofcertain employees 
alleging improperdeniul of healthcare benefits (Moore vs. HCA). Although the College has not 
beennamed as a defendant in the lawsuit, someof the class members are current or former 
employees ofthe College. Potentially, the state could assess the College with a material share of 
anyamount paid in the eventof a settlement or judgment.Due to the status of thelawsuit, the 
impact upon the College cannot be assessed with reasonable certainty at present. 
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In fall 2013, the college recei ved notice of error in calculating the license costs associated with a 

Novell software product. To correct the error, the college paid Novell $290,849. 

Additionally, the College is engaged in various legal actions in theordinary course of business. 
Management does not believe the ultimate outcome of these actionswill have a material adverse 
effect on the financial statement. 

The Collegehas commitments of$2,504,432 for various capital improvement projects that 
include construction and completionofnew buildings and renovations of existing buildings. 

17. Subsequent Events 

The college also has an outstanding legal matter originally filed with a labor arbitrator and with 
the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC). The arbitrator ruled in favor of the 
college.However, PERC ruled in favor of the complainant. The college appealedthe ruling. At 
the end of fiscal year 2014, the college had notice of claimof$337,701,30.Thisfigure included 
back pay for the impacted employees, returnof unemployment compensation overpayment, and 
attorney's fees. 

18. Net Position Restatement 
As ofJuly 1, 2013, net position as previously reportedwas restated as follows: 

Table 7: Net Position Restatement Amount 

July 1, 201 3 Net position as previously reported $152,2 12,856 

Appropriations receivable from State Treasurer 2,610,290 

Less Building fee and innovationfee payable to 

State Treasurer and other misc. payables 

July l, 2013 Net position as restated 
367,887 

$154,455,259 
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Appendix D 

Washington State Auditor’s Office 

September 10, 2015 

Board of Trustees 
Everett Community College 
Everett, Washington 

Management Letter 

This letter includes a summary of specific matters that we identified in planning and performing 
our financial audit of the Everett Community College from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. 
We believe our recommendations will assist you in improving the College’s internal controls in 
these areas. 

We will review the status of these matters during our next audit. We have already discussed our 
comments with and made suggestions for improvements to College officials and personnel. If 
you have any further questions, please contact me at (425) 257-2137. 

This letter is intended for the information and use of management and the governing body. 
However, this letter is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.  

We would also like to take this opportunity to extend our appreciation to your staff for the 
cooperation and assistance given during the course of the audit. 

Sincerely, 

Kristina Baylor, Audit Manager 

Attachment 

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021  Olympia, Washington 98504-0021  (360) 902-0370  TDD Relay (800) 833-6388 94



 

 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

     
      

     
       

   
 

  
 

        
      

     
      

     

           
        

     
 

   
 

     
      

     
    

 
 

  
       

  
   

 
 

 
 

 
   

      
       

   

Management Letter 
Everett Community College 

July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

Financial Statement Preparation 

The College is responsible for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls to 
ensure financial statements are prepared and fairly presented in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). For fiscal year 2014, the College reported 
$151,894,650 in capital assets, net of depreciation. We identified weaknesses in internal controls 
that affected the College’s ability to accurately report its capital assets. 

We noted the following errors that resulted from these control weaknesses: 

 The College capitalized ten assets that did not meet the capitalization threshold for 
buildings and improvements of $100,000 as prescribed by the State Administrative & 
Accounting Manual (SAAM). As a result, the College overstated depreciation expense on 
four items by $5,413, overstated accumulated depreciation by $222,995 and overstated 
capital assets, net of depreciation by $43,367. 

 The College does not have an adequate secondary review of assets entered into FAE. 
Certain assets defaulted to an incorrect useful life of fifteen years despite having the 
correct commodity code assigned to them. As a result, current year and accumulated 
depreciation was miscalculated on 40 buildings and improvements. Depreciation expense 
was understated by $1,054,580 and accumulated depreciation was understated by 
$521,751. 

 The FAE system does not reflect actual library resources owned by the College in fiscal 
year 2014. The College made an adjustment to include the historical cost of the library 
resources on the financial statements; however, it did not book the associated 
depreciation expense of $79,754 resulting in an understatement of annual depreciation 
expense. 

The net misstatement from the items identified above is an understatement of depreciation 
expense by $1,128,921, an understatement of accumulated depreciation by $298,756 and an 
overstatement of capital assets, net of depreciation by $565,118. The net misstatement is not 
material to the College. We also noted the College did not report as restricted Net Position the 
amount of funds reserved for guaranteed loans to students pursuant to RCW 28B.15.820. The 
total amount to be restricted at June 30, 2014 was $1,021,486. 

We communicated other less significant errors to management.  

We recommend the College dedicate the necessary time and resources to ensure procedures, such 
as training and adequate oversight, are in place to ensure reported capital asset balances are 
valued accurately and exist at fiscal year-end. We also recommend that the College strengthen its 
preparation and review process to ensure balances are classified correctly. 
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Appendix E 

The Board of Trustees of Everett Community College met on September 15, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. in the 
Jackson Senate Room at Everett Community College. 

Presidents update 
President David Beyer welcomed everyone to the meeting and the start of the new school year. 

Alison Stevens thanked Peg Balachowski for her work with new faculty and then introduced the 21 
new tenure track faculty members to the Board. 

Jeanne Leader introduced members that represent the Leadership Academy teams indicating: 

Team Wind: Lisa Marone, Stacy Siler, Will Frankhouser 
Team Earth: Stephanie Doyle, Maria Dickson 
Team Fire: Deborah Newbury, Kristen McConaha, Sarah Damp, Betsy Stam 

Members of the Leadership Academy teams gave a brief overview of the service projects. that they 
completed during the 2014-2015 academic year. Each team was paired with a member of the 
executive team (Alison Stevens, John Olson, and Jennifer Howard); teams both developed and 
carried out a project to benefit a campus need. 

Roll call:
Chair Bob Bolerjack called the meeting to order. Present for the meeting were trustees Gigi Burke, 
Bob Bolerjack, Betty Cobbs, and Mike Deller. Also present were President David Beyer, Recording 
Secretary Melissa Geraghty, Assistant Attorney General Nancy Garland, Student Representative 
Azrael Howell, Classified Representative Judy Thomas, Faculty Council Representative Greg 
Hammond and 45 faculty, staff, students, and administrators. 

Report from the Board 

Trustee Bob Bolerjack reported he attended meetings with the advisory group and the integrated 
communications council for WSU Everett. He met with Paul Pitre last Friday and had a good 
conversation. He is going to the Groundbreaking for the WSU Everett building on Tuesday. He 
reported that this is the last meeting for Trustee James Shipman. He thanked Trustee Shipman for his 
service to EvCC as a Trustee and former Board Chair, and presented him with a commemorative 
plaque. 

President Beyer echoed Trustee Bolerjack's sentiments and thanked Trustee Shipman for his service. 
toEvCC. 

Trustee Gigi Burke reported that the quality of people working here is impressive, as shown by the
new tenure track faculty members. She said that the quality of education students receive here is 
great to see. 

Trustee Betty Cobbs echoed what Trustee Burke said. She enjoyed hearing the reasons why new 
staff chose EvCC and is excited to be a part of it.

Trustee Mike Deller reported be attended the exit conference with the President and auditors.
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Board of Trustees 
September 15, 2015 
Board Meeting 
Page 2 

Trustee James Shipman reported that in the 10 years he has served asa Trustee, this is the most 
tenured track faculty we've had. He is excited about EvCC's commitment to full-timefaculty. He 
thanked the President and the Board for their service andguidance during his terms as Trustee. 

ConsentAgenda 

MOTION 01-09-2015 Gigi Burke moved for approval of the consent agenda. Mike Deller 
seconded the motion and the motionpassed unanimously. 

Reportsto the Board 

Classified Representative 
JudyThomas reported to theBoard that it is a richer, fuller experience for students when we have 
moreTenure faculty. 

Student Representative. 
Azrael Howell welcomedthe Board to a newand exciting year. A couple of weeks ago, student 
leaders went to leadrship training in Wenatchee. South SeattleCollege interrupted the training for a 
social justice issue that had to do with issues thataffect students on why black lives matters, which is 
important to them. After that discussion, training resumed. Our Ambassadors are excited to be on 
campus. In the welcome week, we had over 450 student IDs printed. Student life is charged with 
bringing ,exciting events this year and is also collaborating with theDiversity & Equity department 
He was pleased to announce that we opened the Pride Center in Parks. 

Faculty CouncilRepresentative 
Greg Hammondreported ·to the Board that faculty is happy with their raise and that he is excited 
about allthe new tenure track faculty. 

Approve Funding for AMTEC Expansion Project 
Jennifer Howard reported to the Board that this agenda item requests the Board considerand approve 
a construction project to expand the Advanced Manufacturing Training Education Center by 
approximatelyl9,650 SFof the College-owned warehouse building currently leased by Providence 
Everett Medical Center at College Plaza at 1001 N. Broadway. 

AMTEC VISION 
The expansion continues to fully realize the vision forAMTEC byco-locating all programs. It 
allows mechatronics and engineering tech to join the other AMTEC programs. 

MECHATRONICS The expansion will allow EvCC.to locate its mechatronics program in 
the AMTEC facility. This July, EvCC received a grant to develop the mechatronics program. 
The mechatronics program is linked to Boeing's and 777Xro the future of the advanced 
manufacturing industry. Industry will increase its reliance on robotics; EvCCwil l train our 
students so they willbe readyfor the jobs of the future. The mechatronics programwill 
generate 4 7 newhigh-demand FTE over three years. 
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RESPONSIVE TOBUSINESS 
Additionally, this expansion willprovide needed flex space to respond to theneeds our 
business partners. Corporate and Continuing Education will be able to use the space to 
conduct contract training in precision machining and other areas, which will generate revenue 
for theCollege. 

MOTlON 02-09-2015 Gigi Burke moved ,that the Board of Trustees approve a motion to 
Approve Funding for AMTECExpansion Project. Betty Cobbs 
seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 

Approval to Fund Low-IncomeStudents Enrolledin College in the HighSchool 
John Bonner and Maria Penareported to the Boardon the proposal of aFee-Waiver program for CHS 
students who qualify for Free or Reduced Lunch in order to increase under-represented student 
populations in CHS, introducingcollege as a real possibility for these student populations. We hope 
to matriculate those students to EvCCafter they graduate from high school. 

MOTION 03-09-2015 Betty Cobbs moved that the BoardofTrustees approvea motion for 
Approvalto FundLow-IncomeStudents Enrolled in College in the 
High School. Gigi Burke seconded the motion and themotion passed 
unanimously. 

Review and AcceptAuditor's Final Report 
Jennifer Howard and Susan Dresser reported to the Boardthat this report was presented to the 
President and Board Audit Committee representative on Thursday, September10, 20 15. The state 
auditors reviewed thereport and presentedall necessary information. The final report has now been 
issued for fiscal year 2014 (year end June. 30, 2014) including the management discussion and 
analysis, auditor'sreport andthe financialstatement. 

MOTION 04-09-2015 Michael Deller moved .that the Board ofTrustees ,approve a motion to 
Accept Auditor's Final Report. Gigi Burke seconded the motion and 
the motion passed unanimously. 

EvCC Foundation Update 
John Olson reported to the Board on updates for the EvCC Foundation and that the Everett 
Community CollegeFoundation partners with the College to provide student scholarships, 
equipment, and program support. Established over 25 years ago, the Foundation has a 1/2time 
Executive Director and 1.5 FTE additionalstaff. 

Centerof Excellence Update
Mary KayeBredeson reported to the Board that in the next decade, Boeing plans to hire 20,000 to 
30,000 persons. By 2020 they want to hire 50% out ofcommunity colleges and 25% ofworkers from 
high school graduates. Mary Kaye provided an update on how the CTC's are preparing to meet the 
demand for new emerging technologies and trends in aerospace and other manufacturing companies 
She discussed how we are preparing students with the work skills needed that will launch their career 
pathways in this fast-growing industry. 
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Reviewof Standard Student Success Reports 
This topic was deferred toa future Study Session. 

Executive Session 
At 7:40 p.m. Chair Bob Bolerjack adjourned into executive session to discuss real estate issues. He 
stated that no action would be taken. 

Adjourn 
Meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

Bob Bolerjack Chair David N. Beyer, Secretary, 
Board ofTrustees Board ofTrustees 
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